MEETING OF THE MINT HILL PLANNING BOARD
SEPTEMBER 19, 2022
6:30 P.M.

CALL TO ORDER

ROLL CALL AND INVOCATION

APPROVE MINUTES OF THE AUGUST 15, 2022 REGULAR MEETING

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS OF AGENDA ITEMS

REPORTS OF COMMITTEES, MEMBERS, AND STAFF

OLD BUSINESS

NEW BUSINESS

A. DISCUSSION AND RECOMMENDATION ON #ZC22-4, FILED BY THE TOWN OF MINT HILL, FOR

A POST CONSTRUCTION ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT

8. OTHER BUSINESS

9. ADJOURNMENT

Nouvhs~wN e

Town of Mint Hill
4430 Mint Hill Village Lane
Mint Hill, North Carolina 28227
(704) 545-9726
info@minthill.com

www.minthill.com
@TownOfMintHill

@townofminthill

YouTube Channel


http://www.minthill.com/
https://www.facebook.com/TownOfMintHill
https://www.instagram.com/townofminthill/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC5LTHPE0q3K_NrtO2MP4y6w/featured
https://www.minthill.com/
https://www.facebook.com/TownOfMintHill
https://www.instagram.com/townofminthill/
https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC5LTHPE0q3K_NrtO2MP4y6w/featured

VIEWING A PUBLIC MEETING ONLINE

The Town of Mint Hill live-streams the regularly scheduled meetings of the Board of Commissioners, Planning
Board and Board of Adjustment. Anyone can view the live meetings or watch at a later time on the Town’s
YouTube Channel. To watch a meeting, hover a smartphone camera app over the QR Code to the right or
navigate any web browser to https://bit.ly/2YBIORz.

AGENDAS & MINUTES

Current and past Agendas and Minutes for the Board of Commissioners, Planning Board and Board of Adjustment
can be found at https://bit.ly/3gulVL4 or hover a smartphone camera app over the QR Code to the right.

AGENDA &
MINUTES



https://bit.ly/2YBI0Rz
https://bit.ly/3gulVL4

MINUTES OF THE MINT HILL PLANNING BOARD MEETING
AUGUST 15, 2022

The Mint Hill Planning Board met in regular session on Monday, August 15, 2022 at 6:30 p.m. in the John
M. McEwen Assembly Room, Mint Hill Town Hall.

ATTENDANCE
Chairman: Tom Gatz
Members: Kenny Draffen, Roger Hendrix, Chip Todd, and Eric Tyson
Planning Director: John Hoard
Clerk to the Board: Savanna Ocasio
Commissioner: Patrick Holton
Absent: Scott Fandel and Jennifer Manchester

CALL TO ORDER AND INVOCATION

Chairman Gatz called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m., declared a quorum present and the meeting duly
constituted to carry on business. Mr. Hendrix gave the invocation.

ORDER OF BUSINESS
Approval of Minutes for the April 18, 2022 Regular Meeting and July 18, 2022 Regular

Meeting: Upon the motion of Mr. Hendrix, seconded by Mr. Tyson, the Board unanimously approved
the minutes of the April 18, 2022 and July 18, 2022 Planning Board meeting.

Additions or Deletions of Agenda Items: None.

Reports of Committees, Members and Staff: None.

Old Business: None.

New Business:

A. Discussion and Recommendation on #2.C22-3, Filed by Chris Hertz, for property located at 10815
Clear Creek Commerce Drive, Tax Parcel number: 137-152-64, to request Site Plan and
Architectural approval, including Building Materials: Planning Director Hoard submitted the
following memo to the Board.

Clear Creek Business Park’s initial rezoning in 2001 established the following condition: The front
facades shall be constructed of masonry or brick material. In addition, all buildings visible from the
street must also be masonry or brick on side and rear. On November 14, 2019, Albemarle Road
Associates, LLC, was approved to amend the condition to read: The Front facade shall be
constructed of masonry, brick, stone, precast concrete panels, glass and/or tilt wall concrete panels.
In addition, all buildings visible from the street shall be masonry, brick, stone, precast concrete
panels, glass and/or tilt wall concrete panels.



The applicant is requesting site plan and architectural approval, including building materials. Site
Plan and architectural approval is typically an administrative process for Clear Creek. The issue
causing the plan to go through the Conditional rezoning process is the introduction of a building
material currently not allowed in the list of approved materials. The Front facade shall be
constructed of masonry, brick, stone, precast concrete panels, glass and/or tilt wall concrete panels.
In addition, all buildings visible from the street shall be masonry, brick, stone, precast concrete
panels, glass and/or tilt wall concrete panels. Conditional District decisions shall be made in
consideration of identified relevant adopted land use plan. Conditional District rezoning is a
legislative procedure under which the Board of Commissioners has the authority to increase, tighten,
add, vary, modify, or waive specific conditions or standards. In approving a petition for the rezoning
of property to a Conditional District the Board of Commissioners may request reasonable and
appropriate conditions

Planning Director Hoard provided the Board with a brief introduction of the request. He explained when
the Clear Creek Business Park was originally rezoned in the early 2000’s, there was a Condition placed
stating the front facade of all buildings shall be constructed of masonry or brick material. In addition, any
side or rear visible from the street must also meet that requirement. Fast forward to 2019, the developer
of Clear Creek Business Park came before the Board to add the following materials to the list: stone,
precast concrete panels, glass and/or tilt wall concrete panels. In addition, all buildings visible from the
street shall be masonry, brick, stone, precast concrete panels, glass and/or tilt wall concrete panels.
Planning Director Hoard stated after Staff reviewed the plans, he sent out a note to the applicant asking a
question about the materials being used, which lead the applicant to come before the Board to propose the
addition of a new material and elevations.

Chris Hertz, WHN Architecture, introduced himself to the Board and began his proposal. Mr. Hertz
presented an approval letter stating the elevations he presented at last weeks Board of Commissioners
meeting were approved by the Architectural Review Board of the Clear Creek Business Park. When
presenting the site plan, he explained the East side of the building faced the street, the South side of the
building had a sidewalk along the exits, and loading docks along with a drive-in door were located on the
North side. Mr. Hertz showed the Board the durable insolated metal panel he was proposing to use on the
front and two sides of the building.

Chairman Gatz asked which side of the panel would be the interior. Mr. Hertz stated the metal side; the
exterior emulated tilt and EIFS. He added the panel was expensive.

Mr. Hertz provided the Board with the revised elevations. He stated the front elevation would consist of
brick, EIFS on the office level, the doors and windows would be store front, and on the higher back portion
there would be TextureClad Wall Panel that had a stucco like appearance. He explained he was before the
Board to request using the panel presented around three sides of the building. At last weeks Board of
Commissioners meeting, there were discussion of the other metal building panel they proposed to use on
two sides of the building, but the Board made it clear they did not want a panel that was easily dented so
tonight he proposed a sturdy and durable panel. Mr. Hertz added they received a Foundation Footing
Permit from Mecklenburg County, and they were anxious to get the project rolling.

Mr. Todd asked what the building backed up to. Mike Johnson, Ascent Construction Group, introduced
himself to the Board. He referred to the site plan and stated there was a 10-foot-tall berm on the back side



of the property which backed up to the Rocky River High School Athletic Fields. Mr. Todd asked how
durable the material was, could it be painted? Mr. Johnson stated yes, the product was durable and could
be painted. Due to the Kynar paint finish, this panel was more durable to fading overtime. He added the
product had a twenty-five-year warranty on it.

Mr. Hendrix asked where Mr. Johnson had previously used this product as this was his first time seeing
it. Mr. Johnson stated he had previously used this product on industrial type facilities in Winston-Salem.
Mr. Hendrix asked if there was much of the product. Mr. Johnson stated due to the expense of the product,
it was not common. Mr. Hendrix asked how the price of this product differed from other building
materials. Mr. Johnson stated using this product was less expensive than using tilt, but more expensive
than the average metal siding. He explained with the proposed building, they were up against economics
as they were already one million dollars over budget. Mr. Hendrix asked how the applicant was one million
dollars over budget. Mr. Johnson stated they were hit with inflation. Mr. Hendrix stated the material was
nice, but he was concerned with the building not matching its surroundings and with the material not being
as well known and used compared to other products. Mr. Johnson explained their thought process. He
stated from a distance, the proposed material gave the same aesthetic as a tilt wall building which was
why the Architectural Review Board gave their approval. Mr. Hendrix asked where this panel could be
found in Charlotte. Mr. Johnson stated he would reach out to his supplier, Metl-Span, to see where in
Charlotte this product could be seen.

Mr. Draffen stated he agreed the material looked similar to a concrete stand-up panel, but he was
concerned about the warranty not lasting as long as other materials.

Mr. Tyson asked how seams were handled between panels with this particular material. Mr. Johnson
showed the Board how the panels would interlock, stating it was a concealed fastener type system. Mr.
Tyson confirmed there would be no metal runner to conceal it. Mr. Johnson said correct, all that would be
seen was the panel presented.

Chairman Gatz asked if the back metal panel would be seen from the Rocky River High School Athletic
Fields. Mr. Johnson stated there may be some visibility, but not a lot due to this specific parcel sitting up
high and the 10-foot-tall berm. Mr. Johnson gave a brief explanation of how the building was designed.
Chairman Gatz asked what the history of the proposed panel was. Mr. Johnson stated this specific panel
had been around for approximately twenty-five years. Chairman Gatz asked what the price difference was
between the proposed panel and regular metal panels. Mr. Johnson stated the proposed panel was 4-5
times more expensive than regular metal panels. Chairman Gatz expressed his thoughts on the back of the
building and shared he did not like it. Mr. Johnson stated he understood the other buildings in the Business
Park were allowed to have metal on the backsides of their buildings. Chairman Gatz asked if those
buildings were visible from the Rocky River High School Athletic Fields. Mr. Johnson said no, the
buildings he referred to were located in the front of the Business Park. Chairman Gatz asked if the color
of the metal panel being used on the back of the building matched the proposed panel color. Mr. Johnson
said yes, it would be a similar color.

Mr. Hendrix asked how long it took Mr. Johnson to order and receive the proposed material. Mr. Johnson
stated approximately one year. Mr. Hendrix asked if the applicant ordered the lighter steel for the building.
Mr. Johnson stated this building was a pre-engineered metal building so by nature it was designed as light
as possible. Mr. Hendrix stated knowing what the building required, he did not understand why this



proposal was before the Board at this time. Mr. Johnson stated his understanding was their proposal had
to be presented to the Architectural Review Board for approval. He stated there was a major
misunderstanding when they were communicating with MPV Properties that they had the responsibility
of their Architectural Review. He explained they were blindsided when they submitted their permit
through the Town and Planning Director Hoard contacted them explaining their standards. Mr. Hendrix
stated he understood their dilemma but felt like they were putting their dilemma in the Towns hands which
concerned him.

Mr. Hendrix asked Planning Director Hoard if the Architectural Review Board was not aware of their
requirements. Planning Director Hoard stated this proposal was one of two that were being brought to
Staff’s attention. He stated Mr. Hertz was correct as to there being miscommunication; once the applicant
received the approval from the Business Park, they thought they were good to go but Clear Creek later
said they had a disclaimer reading they needed the Towns approval which the applicant was unaware of.
He stated the material requirements had been in place since the beginning with additional materials being
added in 2019. Mr. Hendrix stated he did not have an issue with the back panel being metal for expansion
reasons, his problem lied with adding this building with the proposed materials rather than what the park
currently had.

Chairman Gatz asked Planning Director Hoard if the Board approved this request, were they setting a
precedent or could this be a onetime approval. Planning Director Hoard stated this request was specific to
this property only. He explained even if the Board of Commissioners approved the proposed material and
allowed the applicant to follow through with the elevations requested, it would only apply to this site. If
someone were to come before the Board with the same request, they would be subject to the rules set for
the Clear Creek Business Park without the material allowance the current applicant was requesting. He
stated the Business Park could have come before the Board requesting to change the material for the whole
park, but they did not. Chairman Gatz asked if the Clear Creek Architectural Review Board understood
the required standards. Planning Director Hoard stated not only did they understand it, they wrote it in
2019.

Mr. Hendrix referred to Planning Director Hoard mentioning this situation happened twice, he asked how
so? Planning Director Hoard explained there was another site near the site being discussed that brought
all of this to his attention. Chairman Gatz asked what the Clear Creek Architectural Review Board said
about the other site. Planning Director Hoard said both sites were given the chance to present their case in
front of the Board for Town approval with the second site possibly coming before the Board at a later
date.

Mr. Johnson addressed Mr. Hendrix concerns explaining the product presented was created to provide a
hard coat look. He stated while Mr. Hendrix mentioned it was a metal panel, but what would be seen was
a nice-looking textured coat finish which was better than paint with it being factory applied. Mr. Hendrix
stated he understood as he owned two metal buildings himself. He explained his issue was with the Town
being responsible to fix the situation when the applicant was unaware they had to request approval from
Local Government. He stated the Board had been down the road of people making mistakes and once the
Board stepped in to help, it created a domino effect of everyone requesting a change. Mr. Hendrix was
shocked the Review Board did not communicate properly with the applicant and thought the bone the
applicant needed to pick was with them, not the Town.



Chairman Gatz stated if it was up to him and the panel was brought to the Board ahead of time, he would
have agreed with Mr. Johnson that it looked just like a tilt panel, but he had to disagree as the Board felt
they were caught in the middle.

Mr. Todd asked what the availability was of the presented product. Mr. Johnson stated it was manufactured
with the building and would be available if they received approval from the Town. Chairman Gatz asked
if the applicant proposed to use the presented panel on the front of the building when it went through to
the Clear Creek Architectural Review Group. Mr. Johnson said the panel would be used on the higher
elevation behind the office. He explained what would be seen was the fagade with a raised parapet on the
front office side and then a bit of the panel on the front of the building due to the step-up. Chairman Gatz
stated from the get-go, the applicant had the wrong materials. Mr. Johnson stated from his understanding,
these were the materials discussed and decided on with the Architectural Review Board as he understood
that was whom they received approval from. Chairman Gatz stated the Board had Ordinances to follow
and the only ones capable of changing those were the Board of Commissioners, so he felt this decision
needed to come from them.

Mr. Hendrix agreed with Chairman Gatz stating he did not think it was the Planning Boards responsibility
to grant such a thing as their job was to enforce the rules, not make them.

Upon the motion of Mr. Hendrix, seconded by Mr. Todd, the Board voted to send an unfavorable
recommendation to the Board of Commissioners on #Z.C22-3, Filed by Chris Hertz, to request site
plan and architectural approval, including building materials. The vote was 3:2 with Chairman
Gatz, Mr. Hendrix, and Mr. Todd voting in agreement with the motion, and Mr. Draffen and Mr.
Tyson voting in opposition of the motion.

Other Business: None.

Adjournment: Upon the motion of Mr. Hendrix, seconded by Mr. Todd, and unanimously agreed upon,
Chairman Gatz adjourned the meeting at 7:15 p.m.

Savanna Ocasio
Program Support Assistant



Town of

_‘ MINT HILL
"

STAFF REPORT

CASE#H 2C22-4

Scan QR Code with your Smartphone Camera for Meeting Agenda Packets




Town of

f6.,) MINT HILL
= ot et

APPLICATION

CASE: | zC22-4

EXISTING ZONING: | N/A

PROPOSED ZONING: | N/A

PROPERTY OWNER: | N/A
APPLICANT: | Town of Mint Hill

LOCATION: | N/A

nomeer(s):| /A

REQUEST: | Text Amendment to Section 6.8 Post-Construction Ordinance

Scan QR Code with your Smartphone Camera for Meeting Agenda Packets




- MINT HILL STAFF REPORT

OI‘tA w/‘aluww

APPLICATION The proposed Text Amendment addresses the State changes made to the table of uses for the Goose Creek buffers. Since we are required to
SUMMARY have the same requirements as the State, we will need to change the table in Mint Hill’s Post-Construction Ordinance.

Scan QR Code with your Smartphone Camera for Meeting Agenda Packets




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

inance

Ord

0n

Construct

Section 6.8 - Post-

TITLE

aAon
vy

e = =5 o)

AUTHORIT Y

XU T IR

X

aey
v=)

EINDINGS
TNV O

03\
\eavy )

PURPOSE

aed
le ey

I OO

x

al

X7

Sneeific

S

1

GooseCreek Dictry

FOOSC K IASH I

X7

Man

tvidpP—

INTERPRETATION.

AN BT IS T A T EOITY

106\
le iy

Meanine-andIntent

Ve ARG Ot e

X7

£ Confliet

o cCcoOmCt—rrrrrr e

1

100

pretatdon—

£ Tina

o2y

Computats

Pt Ol O T e e s

© O~ > >~ > > D~ 0~ 00 0 0

and Gender

t+ and Camputation
rTaRg-computatot———————————— e

na

Sages
HORSC T U S A Sttt e e

Delesation-of-Authorit

PO o Aoty e e e
Tence Plyrals

DESICN MANUIAL

DEDTO TN TN U7Xk

Icaoce
Contnets

aoen
a7y




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

AGREEMENTS
ATIEETVIET D

Conflietoflaws

enta

Privato Ao
THHVAE

Effeetive Date

laotione (antinya
VHOratoRS-cOMtBe

AVA

Pesionation

@

Powersand Duties

T OWeS R U CS

for Parmit

YPPry o eraHt-

Permit Reagwired- Must Anpls

T et equea; vitdsSt

EffeetofPermit
THeCtHotTT et

Permit ReviewEees
eIV W T eSS e

Review

@)

A nproval

@

Eails to Compls

TS0

nditions/ Propnosed-Site Plang
EXISHRE-coRatonS ropoSeadHe r S e

Evicting

&

Natural Recources Inventor

DA SO CCS Ve Y e

ii



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

18
18
19
19
20
20
20
20
20
20
20
20

21
=22

>
(]

Svperior-Coutt

SWAC for Annoaal ar Varaneo
SWAC

by

n t
VEECTAtCaCoORVeYyaRces—

VA RaRCC COROIORS e s

eVeW- By DUpertor-Cottt e
STANDARDS

DA AND A

Catawba Dictriet

ClearCreekDPistrict

GooseCreek Dictriet

SOeSe- H K SISt
Vesetated-Convevances

Stranm Ruffarg

THRE AV aRRCe T e o e
INORCE- ARG E e e

T CHHOR OO WY 1ot Y pPpear ot
Eilineof Notice-of-Appeal
Eiling o VVarigneo Datiting

THRC I EXPH O e
THIREZ-0r OHCe-O0t

Tirma T 1t /DHyndeation
Notice-and-Hearine
\artanee-Conditions

APPROVALS
7XT X IOV 71Xk
Effeet of-Approval
\arianees

A etion-bs
Rehearine

Petits
Reaview

)
Ja8
&
)
6)
325
)
@
Jox

LA
"y
B)
(&N
A

Q04N
vy
6-83
B:0=

il



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

22
22

+ Valymo
H—V-ordmMe

22

+ Qugtam Nacign
T oYSteMPeStE

Qtragns Dyflara
ot U S —

23

Control
StormwWater reakc oo

Storm- Wator Dagl
N egetated Convevances

ORVCYARCESsS—

v-egetatea

24

Stream Buffers

t+ Suctam Dacion
HoySstemestgh-

26

Stragns Byflfarg

27

V-OrtHe

Storm - Watar \aliimaa (Canten]

D tOTHT—VW-atet

27

Control
Storm—wW-ater reaxk-Conrtror——r

Storm-Water Pegl

n-of-Authorits

Deleogts

P Eato- O Aoy e

abilit

Annli

+ \VVolume

H VO C

Control

Storm-\Water Paal

Dt YW-ater reax

W7

t+ Svuctem DNocion
HOYSteM DPeSIg

Annaalc and VVamanoac

xppearsana

7

Cotat

£ Auth

n

Delecats

PO O O Oy e

ahality

Annly

iv



.Effective July 21, 2016

Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................c.........

WVWETELANDS

308)
(CAd )

W E T =AY

68

68
68

+H-Unen-Area

eSSl zov7o bUhto POl

I essThan20% Bx

69
69
69

Purnose

(AD
X7

al Deserintion
SR DeSCHPHON e e e s

G

—09

tHgatto

Site Matication

=4

On




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

LA A uthoritvto-Enforce 76

\eay) O Y T OrCe e e
\olation Unlaw il 76

\e=y VOt o ohhdWiith e e e e e e
Each Dav g Sanarato O)ffanca

\N =y At ay-aOtparatc-oHehHSt—

vi



©
=
o
Q
—
I

>
E
=

o]

>
=

5
i
m

Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance......................

78

Extension-of-Time
EXTCRSTOR-O01

Enfarcomiant Afiar Timao ta ((aerant

EHTHOFCCmeht

79
79

Yo T HR OO et e

Enforcement
R ECRCY T orCOmtht e s

Emercenes

Remedies
CHCaICS

an oy

ato of ()

lding of Certify
wHHoTGH g o Certeate o oeeupaney e e

Withh

&

Iniunetion—Abatements—ete

YWOHCH eSS Ot e e

THHHRCHoH;

@)

Cial Penagltioc

\golations-ofOrdinance
YHoHoRS o OrdaRce

@
Joxy

£ Danalty,

AROHRT O T CRAtY e e e e

1t

A

THHRH T R CS e s

Crimminal Penalties

83
83
83
83
83
84

Pevelopment
Drainace-Ares
pDrathage - tea—

Built Unon-Area (BLIA)

DHH o PR e tb o)~

Decion Manual
Dicturbance

DSV ECHCHt T T aCHCeS OV S
OHHTCT

Best Manacsement Practices (BMPg)

84
84

vii

GooseCreek Distriet
FOOSe-H K ASHIC e

Eloodnlain




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

13 GraseField Q4
T SFaSS 0 e s o

4 Industrigl Uses Q4
T4 HOUSH oSS e e o4

35 Undisturbed Open SPACe oo e 86
6.8.1 GENERAL PROVISIONS 1
aon TITLE 1
(102) AUTHORITY 1
(103) FINDINGS 1
(104) PURPOSE 2

(A) GONETAL....cuieee e 2

(B) SPECITIC 1. 2
(105) APPLICABILITY AND JURISDICTION 3

(A) G008 Creek DISTIICE. .. 3

(B) Catawba District and Clear Creek DiStriCt. . o.uuuiiieuriiieiiriiieiiiiiesiseiieeesiiseeesainnnees 3

© Catawba District and Clear Creek District EXemptions .......ccccceveeeccvieeeenceenenes 4

viii



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

D) No Development or Redevelopment Until Compliance and Permit
(E) IMIAD s
106) INTERPRETATION
(A) Meaning aNd INEENT ....eiiiieie e et ie et eeeeeiteeeeaiseeeaeenseeesassesesssnneeesssosseesssnns
(B) Text Controls in Event of Conflict...
(©) Authority for Interpretation......cuveeeeeeeeeiiiiieieieiieeeienneens
D) References to Statutes, Regulations, and Documents..........cocceceeieiiecnniieneen.ns 6
(E) ComMPULATION OF TIIMIC ...ttt seeteeeeetetesseeseesseasseeesensnsesssosnseseaanseeesannnnees 6
13 Delegation of AUthOTItY .....c.cuveeiiiiiiicciece e 6
(G) L S . ittt ettt ettt ee e e ee e e e ettt ettt e eeae e e et teeeeeeaeeeaeeannnnnnreeeseees 7
(1) Mandatory and DiScretionary TEIIIS ...couueeieeeeueieeiiiieeieeiieeeseisiieseesieeeeseeseeeaaanns 7
(2) COMUNCEIONS .ttt etee e et eeeeeeseeseeeeeeseaneseessnssesaaansessessnnssessannseesasnsseessnnnnees 7
(3) Tense, Plurals, and GeNAET .......coouuuiiiiiiiiii e eeieeieeieeeesesiesessseeseesssseeessnnnnees 7
(H) Measurement and COMPULATION ...oouueiiiieitiiieeiiteeeeaireeeeeenseeesesseseessnneeeessonseesasnns 7
ao7n DESIGN MANUAL 7
(A) Reference to Design Manual............ccocoeeiiiiiiiiiiciiciceccee e 7
(B) Relationship of Design Manual to Other Laws and Regulations..........cccccuveee..e.. 8
© Changes to Standards and Specifications .........cccccevvcecrieniiisiiccciicciceee 8
(D) Amendments t0 Design Manual..........oiieouiiiiiiiieiiiieeeieiieeeeeiiieeisieeeeeesoseeeeaanns 8
108) RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER LAWS, REGULATIONS AND PRIVATE
AGREEMENTS 8
(A) Conflict Of LAWS ..o 8
(B) Private AGrEemMENtS ... ..ot 8
109) SEVERABILITY 9
10y EFFECTIVE DATE AND TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS.......ccceoeeuennee 9
(A) EFfective Date ......ccueeeeiieeiiiieecee e 9
(B) Violations CONINUE ... 9
6.8.2 ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURES 10
201) REVIEW AND DECISION MAKING ENTITIES 10
(A) Storm Water AdmINISTIATOT. .. . iuerieiiiitiieseetteeesiteeeeseseesaeasseeseesnnseessasseeesesnanes 10
(@0)] DESIZNAtION ... 10

ix



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

2) POWErS and DULIES ....c.vveeeiiiiieiieiiiisieicecitieccetsecctssc s 10

(202) REVIEW PROCEDURES 10
(A) Permit Required; Must Apply for Permit..........coceeccierieiinisccciiicciieee 10
(B) Effect of Permit....ccccocoeeuveiieiiieeeiinnennn, . .11
© Authority to File Applications ........ccccceeeeveciiciiiicciciiccnee .. 11
(D) Establishment of Application Requirements, Schedule, and Fees...... .11

(@) Application Contents and FOrM .........oceeeiiiiiiiiiiciiceceece 11

(2) SubMISSION SCREAUIE ...t e eeeeteeeeeaseeeseeaeeessaanseeeesinneeaas 11

3) Permit REVIEW FEES .....cueiuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiecccc e 12

4) AdminiStrative MAnUAL .......oouueiiieiiieeieieeieteesseeseeessseeeesesonseeessasseessasnseeaeanns 12

(E) Submittal of Complete APPLCAtION ....uuuiiiiiiieiieiiiieeeeetieeeeseiieeeesiseeessiaeeesesnnnes 12

(F) RV T W ittt e et e e et eessaneeee et s eeenetesssmnneasensneeeaansaessannseeasanns 12

(1) ADDIOVAL ittt ettt e e eateesateeeaaneeesannneesannnseeesaanseessennneeaeanns 12

(2) FalS 10 GO .ttt e e eetteeseiieeeesanneeesesnnneesannssesssanssessennneeasonns 13

(3) Revision and SubSEqUENt REVIEW .......ocouiiiiiiiiiiiieiiiieeeeeeeeiiseeeesaseessenoseeaeanns 13

(203) APPLICATIONS FOR APPROVAL 13
(A) Concept Plan and Consultation Meeting. .. .ccu.veeiieuieiieiiieieiiiireeiiieieeseiieeeeeesnnes 13

(@9)] Existing Conditions / Proposed Site Plans.........c.cccoccociiciiiniiiiicnee 14

(2) Natural ReSOUICES TNVENTOTY ....uviiiiiiiiiiiiitiieeeieiiesieeseseeseiseesseisreeseasnseesesnneesas 14

3) Storm Water Management System Concept Plan...........ccoeeeeeiinicnnnnnneene 14

(B) Storm Water Management Permit Application..........ooouueieeiiiieiiiiiiieiiiiieeeennns 14

© As-Built Plans and Final Approval..........cccccooiciiniiiiiiiiiiiccece 15
(204) APPROVALS 15
(A) Effect of APProval .....ccoceeeiiiiiiiiiicecee e 15

(@9)] Time Limit/EXPiration ........coccocoeiiiiiiiiiciicieceeceec e 15

(205) APPEALS AND VARIANCES 16
(A) Powers and Duties of the Storm Water Advisory Committee ..........ccceeevneeeee 16

(1) AdMINISIrAtiVE REVIEW ...viiiiiiiiiiiiitiieeieiesieeteeeseiseeesssnnseesessnseeessasseessesoseesesnns 16

2) VATTANCES ..o 16

(B) Petition t0 SWAC for Appeal Or VAITANCE ......uvvieieieeiiiiiiiiiiieeiieeesiiseeeeeinieasanns 16

(@0)] Filing of Notice of Appeal.........cccccoviuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicceccee 17




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

2) Filing a Variance Petition ..........ccoccoveuioiiiiiiiiiiiicecieeecce 17

3) Notice and Hearing................ .17

4) Standards for Granting an Appeal ..... ... 18

(5) Standards for Granting a Variance..... . 18

(6) Variance Conditions ...... . 18

(N Action by SWAC.... . 18

(8) RENCAMNNG .t 19

(©) ReVIEW DY SUPETIOT COUIT ..ttt iieeeeeiteieeeesiiesseneesesasseseesesseeseanseeasanns 19
6.8.3 STANDARDS 20
301 GENERAL STANDARDS 20
(302) WATERSHED DISTRICTS 20
(A) CaAtAWDA DISIITCT. ..ttt itiie ettt e eet e eeeteeeseeseeeesssssessanneeseaonsesessnnsesesonnseesosnnnes 20

(B) Clear CIeeK DISIIICE .. uueiiiiiitiee et eeeeteeeseeseeeessosseessassneeseasnsesessnnsesssosnseesesnnnes 20

(©) GOOSE CIEEK DISTIICE . ...uviiiiiiiieeeeiitisseeteeeseeseeeesssssessssnseeseasnseeessnsesssosnseesesnnnes 20
(303) DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR CATAWBA DISTRICT .....cccoccece. 20
(A) Development Standards for Low Density Projects........ccccovnececiiicciieneneees 20

(1) Vegetated CONVEYAINCES ....oiiuuriiieeiteieeeeieeeieeuseessaosseessnnseesassnseeessasssessesnseeasanns 20

2) Stream BUffers .........cccoceviiiiiiiiiiiicc e 21

(B) Development Standards for High Density Projects ......ooeoveieeeeiiiiiiiiiieiieinieeanns 22

(@9)] Storm Water Quality Treatment Volume.........ocoocveciiciiiiciiicee 22

(2) Storm Water QUality TrEatIMENT . .ooouuuiiiiiieiieeiiiiieeeeetieeeseseeeseenreeeesinseesesinneeeas 22

3) Storm Water Treatment System DeSign .........coceeeeiiiiiciiiiieiciccene 22

4) Stream BUffers ........cccooeviiiiiiiiiiiiccc e 22

%) Storm Water Volume Control..........coccueeiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiceceecee 23

(6) Storm Water Peak CONtrol.......c.couueueeiiseieeeiiiiicciisiccieesccceseccsenee 23

(304) DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR CLEAR CREEK DISTRICT....... 24
(A) Development Standards for Low Density Projects........ceccoveneccciiiccisenenenes 24

(1) Vegetated CONVEYAINCES ... iuuriiieeitiieeeeitesieeuseesssoseessasnseesassnseeessassessasnseeasanns 24

2) Stream BUffers .........ccooeviiiiiiiiiiiieic 24

(B) Development Standards For High Density Projects ....ccoocviieeeeiiiieiiiiieiieiiieeaanns 25

(@0)] Storm Water Quality Treatment Volume........ococooeveciiciiiiicicccee 25

X1



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

2) Storm Water Quality Treatment ..........cceeeueeeeeeieiieeiiieeieeeieeeeeeeeeeee e 25

3) Storm Water Treatment System Design ... ... 26

4) Stream Buffers .........ccccccoeieeiicnnnnnen ... 26

(5) Storm Water Volume Control...... .27

(6) Storm Water Peak CONtrol.......c.couueceiiseieieiiiiiccisiccciiesccceseccsnee 27

305 DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR GOOSE CREEK DISTRICT ...... 27
(A) Storm Water Control ReEqUIrements. .........cceeueieeiiiiiiiicieeeeececeee 27

(1) Delegation Of AUTNOTIEY ..ueiiiie i ieteeeseeseeesseeeeesesnseeessanseessanseeaeans 27

2) APPHCADTIILY .ottt 29

(3) Storm Water Quality Treatment VOIUME. .....oooouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieiieeeiiieeeesineeass 29

(4) Storm Water QUality TreatMENT . ..ceuueeeiiieeieeiiiieeeeeeeiieeeeeieeeeeeiieeeesiseeeesnneeaas 29

(5) Storm Water VOIUIME CONLIOL......iiiiuiiiiiiieiiieiieieeeeeesieeeseiseesseeinisesesiseesesineeaas 29

(6) Storm Water Peak CoOntIOl. ... oouuiiiiiiiiiiiitiieeeieeseieeeiieesseseesssesnieeessanseesssineeeas 29

(7) Storm Water Treatment SYStem DESIZI ..vuuiiiiouiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeieiieeeesiseeeesineeeas 30

(8) APPEALS ANA VATTANCES....eiii it eiieeteteetseeseeesainseesasnseeessanseessenseeaeanns 30

(B) Control Toxicity Including AMMONIA ...c.ceceueeiiinieciiicciiscccieseceee 30

(©) Stream Buffer ReQUITEIMEINES. ......uviiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeesieieeeseseeesesoseeseesnseessanneeesesnnes 30

(@9)] Delegation of AUthOTity .....ceueeeeiiiiiiiiiiiciccie e 30

(2) A DDIICADIIITY vt iiiee ettt e e e et teeetetessaieneeeeaaseeesannnneesannssessaanssessennneeasans 32

3) Stream Buffer Delineation and Protection...........ccccoceecceinenceccciiieciienees 34

(4) Stream Buffer WIAths ..ot eeetieeeeeaeeeseennieeessonseeessnneeaas 35

%) Stream Buffer Location .........ccocceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiicicsc e 35

(6) Requirements for Categories of Uses and Mitigation.........cccoeeeeecirescecenneee. 35

(@A) Determination of No Practical AIternatives.........cooceceeieeeiiiiiiiicccne 36

®) Approval of Allowable Uses and Uses Allowable with Mitigation ................. 37

(©))] Stream Buffer Categories and USES ..........ccccccouiiiiiiiiiiciiciecicecce 38

10) Variances and Appeals for Activities Within Stream Buffers............c.coce..c.... 61

(11) Mitigation Requirements for Stream Buffer Impacts ..ocoveeeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiieiiieenns 63

(306) DIFFUSE FLOW REQUIREMENT 65
307 PONDS, LAKES AND RESERVOIRS 66
(308) WETLANDS 66

Xii



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(309) STREAM BUFFER DELINEATION 66
310) STANDARDS FOR STORM WATER CONTROL MEASURES 66
(A) Evaluation According to Contents of Design Manual .............cccc.......... .... 66
Determination of Adequacy; Presumptions and Alternatives 66

© Submittal of Digital Records .........cccccoveiviciiiiciiiceee ... 67
311 DEED RECORDATION AND INDICATIONS ON PLAT 67
6.8.4 UNDISTURBED OPEN SPACE 68
(401) PURPOSE 68
(402) GENERAL DESCRIPTION 68
(403) UNDISTURBED OPEN SPACE CRITERIA 68
(A) Less Than 20% Built-lUPOn AT€a.......cccoueiiieeuiiieiieiieeieeiieeeeseiieeeesiiseeesssssseesesnnnes 68
(B) Greater Than or Equal to 20% and Less Than 50% Built-Upon Area............... 68
(©) Greater Than or Equal to 50% Built-Upon AT€a ........ccoouvieeeiuiiiiiiiiieiiiiiieeeennnes 68
(404) UNDISTURBED OPEN SPACE DESIGNATION 69
(405) UNDISTURBED OPEN SPACE MITIGATION 69
(A) PUIMPOSE. ... 69
(B) GENEIal DESCIIPIION ...ueiiiiitieee et s eeteeeseeseeeessosesessanneeseasnsesessnsesesosnnseesesnnnes 69

© Undisturbed Open Space Mitigation Criteria ........cocverveeeceineneecciiieiiineenenes 69

(1) ON-=Sit€ IMITTIGALION 1.t iieiiee ettt eeiteseseeseeeeseseseseassseesasnsseesannesesassseessasnnnes 69

) Off-Site MItIGATION ...cveeeiueeieieieiiiteiiiries et 70

(3) Payment-In-Lieu of Undisturbed Open Space Dedication ..........cceeeeieuneennnnns 70

D) Approval Criteria for Undisturbed Open Space Mitigation...........ccococvueeeeeneee.e. 71

(00} Application for Undisturbed Open Space Mitigation .......coeececierieeceiiinieececnnn 71

2) Pre-Approved Undisturbed Open Space Mitigation........coccceeveeeececinesececennnee. 71

(E) Undisturbed Open Space Designation ..........c.coceeeccierieeeiineneecciirieciseseenees 72
6.8.5 MAINTENANCE 73
(501) DEDICATION OF BMPS, FACILITIES & IMPROVEMENTS........ce0ce. 73
(A) Single Family Residential BMPs Accepted for Maintenance............coeeuveeeennne. 73

(B) Maintenance and Operation 0f BMPS.......cccccouvniciisiiiiiiccciiieccee 73

(©) Damage Or REMOVAL OF TIEES ...uiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeiieieeeesiiesseeeeseeaesessssesseessenseeasanns 73
D) Annual Maintenance Inspection and RepOrt........coceeceveriiieissieciiiisicee, 74

xiii



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(502) OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT .....c.ccceo0eusueinssnsunannne 74

(A) GENETal. ..o .74

(B) Special Requirement for Homeowners’ and Other Associations...................... 75

(503) INSPECTION PROGRAM 75
(504 PERFORMANCE SECURITY FOR INSTALLATION AND

MAINTENANCE 75

(505) RECORDS OF INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES 75

(506) MAINTENANCE EASEMENT 75

6.8.6 VIOLATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT 76

(601) GENERAL 76

(A) AUthOTIEY £0 ENTOTCE ittt eeeeeaitesseeaeessesessensaeesannneeasanns 76

(B) Violation UnIaWIUL .....oiiiiii it tesesiiesseneesesanseeeasesseesaannseeasanns 76

(©) Each Day a Separate OffenSe. ... ueuuiiiieiiiiiiitiiieiieiiesieiseeeeaeseeeesssesssasssseesesnnnes 76

(D) ReSponSible PerSONS/ENIIES ......eiieriieiiiiieeieeueeieeeisetessesnsessesssessesosseessasnseessans 76

1 Person Maintaining Condition Resulting In or Constituting Violation............ 76

2) Responsibility for Land or Use of Land .........cccocoveeciniicisicciissecee, 76

(602) INSPECTIONS AND INVESTIGATIONS 77

(A) Authority t0 INSPECt .. 77

(B) Notice of Violation and Order 10 COITECT .uuuiiiiiuiiiiiiiiieeiieiiieeiiiieeeiaireeseaineeeas 77

© Extension Of TimMe.......oceeeiiiiicieiccceee e 78

(D) Penalties Assessed Concurrent with Notice of Violation ..........cccecveeeveeenneenne... 78

(E) Authority t0 INVestigate .......oeeeeeiiiiiieiiciiciceeeee e 78

(F) Enforcement After Time t0 COITeCt .....ceueueiuiiiiiciicicccee 79

G) Emergency Enforcement........ooeeceeiiiiiiiiiiiiiceecece 79

(603) REMEDIES AND PENALTIES 79

(A) REMEAIES .ttt 79

(@0)] Withholding of Certificate 0f OCCUPANCY ....cveeuireeeeciiiiiiciiicccescaeee 79

(2) Disapproval of Subsequent Permits and Development Approvals................... 79

3) Injunction, Abatements, etC. ..........coueiiiieiiiiiiiiiece e 80

4) Correction as Public Health Nuisance, Costs as Lien, eC. ......ccoceovericrcennene 80

%) Restoration of Areas Affected by Failure to Comply.......ccccccovviiincnnnnnnnn.ne 80

Xiv



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(B) CiVil PENAtI€S ..ot 80
(1) Violations of Ordinance.... .. 80
(2) Amount of Penalty .......coceeevveeeeiiiiiennn. ... 81

3) Notice of Assessment of Civil Penalty ......... ... 81

(4) Failure to Pay Civil Penalty Assessment...... ... 81

(5) Appeal of Remedy or Penalty...... ....82

(®) Criminal Penalties ... ....ocueeeeuueieiieeiieeiieee e 82
6.8.7 DEFINITIONS 83

XV



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

6.8.1

GENERAL PROVISIONS

(101)

(102)

(103)

TITLE

This ordinance shall be officially known as the “Post-Construction Storm Water
Ordinance.” It is referred to herein as “this ordinance.”

AUTHORITY

The Town of Mint Hill is authorized to adopt this ordinance pursuant to North Carolina
law, including but not limited to Article 14, Section 5 of the Constitution of North
Carolina; North Carolina General Statutes 143-214.1, 143-214.7, 143-215.3(a)(1), 143-
215.8 A., and rules promulgated by the N.C. Environmental Management Commission
thereunder; Session Law 2004-163; Chapter 160A, §§ 174, 185; Session Law 2006-246;
and Session Law 2015- 246.

FINDINGS
It is hereby determined that:

Development and redevelopment alter the hydrologic response of local watersheds and
increase storm water runoff rates and volumes, flooding, soil erosion, stream channel
erosion, non-point source pollution, and sediment transport and deposition, as well as
reduce groundwater recharge:,

These changes in storm water runoff contribute to increased quantities of water-borne
pollutants and alterations in hydrology which are harmful to public health and safety as
well as to the natural environment;,

The Goose Creek District in the Yadkin Pee-Dee River Basin provides habitat for the
Carolina heelsplitter, an aquatic animal species that is listed as federally endangered by
the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service under the provisions of the Endangered Species Act,
16 U.S.C. 1531-1544. Maintenance and recovery of the water quality conditions required
to sustain and recover the Carolina heelsplitter thereby protects the biological integrity of
the waters; and

These effects can be managed and minimized by applying proper design and well-
planned controls to manage storm water runoff from development sites.

Further, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act of 1972 (“Clean Water Act”) and
federal Phase II Storm Water Rules promulgated under it, as well as rules of the N.C.
Environmental Management Commission promulgated in response to federal Phase II
requirements, compel certain urbanized areas, including the Town of Mint Hill, to adopt
storm water controls such as those included in this ordinance.




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(104)

Therefore, the Town of Mint Hill establishes this set of water quality and quantity
regulations to meet the requirements of State and federal law regarding the control of
storm water runoff and protection of the Carolina heelsplitter.

PURPOSE

A)

(B)

General

The purpose of this ordinance is to protect, maintain and enhance the public
health, safety, environment and general welfare by establishing minimum
requirements and procedures to control the adverse effects of increased post-
construction storm water runoff and non-point source pollution associated with
new development and redevelopment. Additionally, the purpose of this ordinance
is for the maintenance and recovery of the water quality conditions required to
sustain and recover the federally endangered Carolina heelsplitter (Lasmigona
decorata) species. It has been determined that proper management of construction
related, and post-construction storm water runoff and maintenance of stabile
stream banks will minimize damage to public and private property and
infrastructure, safeguard the public health, safety, and general welfare, and protect
water and aquatic resources.

Specific

This ordinance seeks to meet its general purpose through the following specific
objectives and means:

€)) Establishing decision-making processes for development that protect the
integrity of watersheds and preserve the health of water resources:,

2 Minimizing changes to the pre-development hydrologic response for new
development and redevelopment in their post-construction state in
accordance with the requirements of this ordinance for the applicable
design storm in order to reduce flooding, streambank erosion, and non-
point and point source pollution, as well as to maintain the integrity of
stream channels, aquatic habitats and healthy stream temperatures:,

3) Establishing minimum post-construction storm water management
standards and design criteria for the regulation and control of storm water
runoff quantity and qualitys,

“) Establishing design and review criteria for the construction, function, and
use of structural storm water best management practices (BMPs) that may
be used to meet the minimum post-development storm water management
standards:,



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

5) Managing the streamside buffer zones to stabilize streambanks and
prevent sedimentation is critical to restoring water quality to sustain and
enable recovery of the federally endangered Carolina heelsplitter:,

6) Encouraging the use of better management and site design practices, such
as the use of vegetated conveyances for storm water and preservation of
greenspace, stream buffers and other conservation areas to the maximum
extent practicable:,

@) Establishing provisions for the long-term responsibility for and
maintenance of structural and nonstructural storm water BMPs to ensure
that they continue to function as designed, are maintained appropriately,
and pose minimum risk to public safety:, and

® Establishing administrative procedures for the submission, review,
approval and disapproval of storm water management plans, for the
inspection of approved projects, and to assure appropriate long-term
maintenance.

(105) APPLICABILITY AND JURISDICTION

A)

(B)

Goose Creek District

As of March 11, 2010 (effective date of this ordinance), all developments and
redevelopments within the corporate limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction of the
Town of Mint Hill in the Goose Creek District as defined in the “Post-
Construction Ordinance Map of the Town of Mint Hill” described in Section
105(E) of this ordinance are subject to the applicability provisions contained in
Section 305(A)(2) for storm water controls requirements and Section 305(C)(2)
for stream buffer requirements.

Catawba District and Clear Creek District

The requirements of this ordinance shall apply to all developments and
redevelopments within the corporate limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction of the
Town of Mint Hill in the Catawba District and Clear Creek District as defined in
the “Post-Construction Ordinance Map of the Town of Mint Hill” described in
Section 105(E) of this ordinance, unless one of the following exceptions applies
to the development or redevelopment as of June 30, 2007:

€)) For residential development, Major and Minor preliminary subdivision
plan complete application submitted and accepted for review:,

?2) For nonresidential development, preliminary subdivision plan application
submitted and accepted for review, provided that subdivision-wide water
quality and quantity features required at the time of submittal are



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

©

3)

“)

)

(6)

@)

contained within the submittal and provided the plan is subsequently
approved and all necessary easements are properly established:,

Zoning use application submitted and accepted for review for uses that do
not require a building permit:,

Certificate of Building Code Compliance issued by the proper
governmental authority:,

Valid building permit issued pursuant to North Carolina General Statute
153A-344, so long as the permit remains valid, unexpired, and unrevoked:,

Common law vested right established (e.g., the substantial expenditure of
resources (time, labor, money) based on a good faith reliance upon having
received a valid governmental approval to proceed with a project:, and/or

A conditional zoning district (including those districts which previously
were described variously as conditional district, conditional use district,
parallel conditional district and parallel conditional use district) approved
prior to June 30, 2007, provided formal plan submission has been made
and accepted for review either prior to 5 years from June 30, 2007 in the
case of conditional zoning districts approved on or after July 20, 2000, or
prior to 2 years from June 30, 2007 in the case of conditional zoning
districts approved prior to July 20, 2000, and provided such plans
encompass either a minimum of 25% of the area of the project, or any
phase of a project so long as such phase is part of a project that includes
project-wide water quality requirements to achieve 85% TSS removal
from developed areas. If no such formal plan submission occurs within
the above-described 5-year or 2-year time frames, the requirements of this
ordinance shall be applied to the project, except for undisturbed open
space and stream buffer requirements not in effect at the time of the
approval of the conditional zoning district, all of which do not apply. Any
change deemed to be a minor change to a conditional zoning district
necessary to comply with the requirements of this ordinance shall be made
through administrative amendment and not through a rezoning.

Catawba District and Clear Creek District Exemptions

The following exemptions shall apply to all developments and redevelopments
within the corporate limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction of the Town of Mint
Hill in the Catawba District and Clear Creek District as of June 30, 2007:

M

Development that cumulatively disturbs less than one acre and is not part
of a larger common plan of development or sale is exempt from the
provisions of this ordinance.



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

()

(E)

?2) Redevelopment or expansion that cumulatively disturbs less than one acre
and is not part of a larger common plan of development or sale is exempt
from the provisions of this ordinance.

3) Redevelopment or expansion that results in no net increase in built-upon
area and provides equal or greater storm water control than the previous
development is exempt from the requirements of this ordinance.

“ Development and redevelopment that disturb less than one acre are not
exempt if such activities are part of a larger common plan of development
or sale, even though multiple, separate or distinct activities take place at
different times on different schedules.

&) Activities exempt from permit requirements of Section 404 of the federal
Clean Water Act, as specified in 40 CFR 232 (primarily, ongoing farming
and forestry activities).

6) The Undisturbed Open Space requirements of this ordinance shall not
apply to any redevelopment or to development that has less than 20%
built-upon area.

No Development or Redevelopment Until Compliance and Permit

No development or redevelopment shall occur except in compliance with the
provisions of this ordinance or unless exempted. No development for which a
permit is required pursuant to this ordinance shall occur except in compliance
with the provisions, conditions, and limitations of the permit.

Map

The provisions of this ordinance shall apply within the areas designated on the
map titled “Post-Construction Ordinance Map of the Town of Mint Hill, North
Carolina” (hereafter referred to as the “Post-Construction Ordinance Map”),
which is adopted simultaneously herewith. The Post-Construction Ordinance Map
and all explanatory matter contained thereon accompanies and is hereby made a
part of this ordinance. The Post-Construction Ordinance Map shall be kept on file
by the Storm Water Administrator or designee (hereinafter referred to as the
“Storm Water Administrator”) and shall be updated to take into account changes
in the land area covered by this ordinance and the geographic location of all
structural BMPs permitted under this ordinance. In the event of a dispute, the
applicability of this ordinance to a particular area of land or BMP shall be
determined by appeal through the Storm Water Administrator.

(106) INTERPRETATION



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

A)

(B)

©

D)

(E)

(¥)

Meaning and Intent

All provisions, terms, phrases, and expressions contained in this ordinance shall
be construed according to the general and specific purposes set forth in Section
104, Purpose. If a different or more specific meaning is given for a term defined
elsewhere in the Zoning Ordinance, Subdivision Regulations or other adopted
land use regulations for the Town of Mint Hill, the meaning and application of the
term in this ordinance shall control for purposes of application of this ordinance.

Text Controls in Event of Conflict

In the event of a conflict or inconsistency between the text of this ordinance and
any heading, caption, figure, illustration, table, or map, the text shall control.

Authority for Interpretation

The Storm Water Administrator has authority to interpret this ordinance. Any
person may request an interpretation by submitting a written request to the Storm
Water Administrator who shall respond in writing within 30 days. The Storm
Water Administrator shall keep on file a record of all written interpretations of
this ordinance.

References to Statutes, Regulations, and Documents

Whenever reference is made to a resolution, ordinance, statute, regulation, manual
(including the Design and Administrative Manuals), or document, it shall be
construed as a reference to the most recent edition of such that has been finalized
and published with due provision for notice and comment, unless otherwise
specifically stated.

Computation of Time

The time in which an act is to be done shall be computed by excluding the first
day and including the last day. If a deadline or required date of action falls on a
Saturday, Sunday, or holiday observed by the Town of Mint Hill, the deadline or
required date of action shall be the next day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or
holiday observed by the Town of Mint Hill. References to days are calendar days
unless otherwise stated.

Delegation of Authority

Any act authorized by this ordinance to be carried out by the Storm Water
Administrator of the Town of Mint Hill may be carried out by his or her designee.



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(&)

(H)

Usage
1) Mandatory and Discretionary Terms

The words “shall,” “must,” and “will” are mandatory in nature,
establishing an obligation or duty to comply with the particular provision.
The words “may” and “should” are permissive in nature.

?2) Conjunctions

Unless the context clearly indicates the contrary, conjunctions shall be
interpreted as follows: The word “and” indicates that all connected items,
conditions, provisions or events apply. The word “or” indicates that one or
more of the connected items, conditions, provisions or events apply.

A3) Tense, Plurals, and Gender

Words used in the present tense include the future tense. Words used in
the singular number include the plural number and the plural number
includes the singular number, unless the context of the particular usage
clearly indicates otherwise. Words used in the masculine gender include
the feminine gender, and vice versa.

Measurement and Computation
Disturbed area refers to the amount of horizontal land area contained inside the

limits of the land disturbance. Lot area refers to the amount of horizontal land
area contained inside the limits of the lot lines of a lot or site.

(107) DESIGN MANUAL

A

Reference to Design Manual

The Storm Water Administrator shall use the policy, criteria, and information,
including technical specifications and standards, in the Design Manual as the
basis for decisions about Storm Water Management Permits and about the design,
implementation and performance of structural and non-structural storm water
BMPs.

The Design Manual includes a list of acceptable storm water treatment practices,
including the specific design criteria for each storm water practice. Storm water
treatment practices that are designed and constructed in accordance with these
design and sizing criteria will be presumed to meet the minimum water quality
performance standards of this ordinance and the federal Phase II Storm Water
Rules. Failure to construct storm water treatment practices in accordance with



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(B)

©

D)

these criteria may subject the violator to a civil penalty as described in Section 6
of this ordinance.

Relationship of Design Manual to Other Laws and Regulations

If the specifications or guidelines of the Design Manual are more restrictive or
apply a higher standard than other laws or regulations, that fact shall not prevent
application of the specifications or guidelines in the Design Manual.

Changes to Standards and Specifications

Standards, specifications, guidelines, policies, criteria, or other information in the
Design Manual in affect at the time of acceptance of a complete application shall

control and shall be utilized in reviewing the application and in implementing this
ordinance with regard to the application.

Amendments to Design Manual

The Design Manual may be updated and expanded from time to time, based on
advancements in technology and engineering, improved knowledge of local
conditions, or local monitoring or maintenance experience.

The Storm Water Administrator may amend or update the Design Manual from
time to time. Prior to amending or updating the Manual, proposed changes shall
be generally publicized and made available for review, and an opportunity for
comment by interested persons shall be provided.

(108) RELATIONSHIP TO OTHER LAWS, REGULATIONS AND PRIVATE
AGREEMENTS

A)

(B)

Conflict of Laws

This ordinance is not intended to modify or repeal any other ordinance, rule,
regulation or other provision of law. The requirements of this ordinance are in
addition to the requirements of any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other
provision of law, and where any provision of this ordinance imposes restrictions
different from those imposed by any other ordinance, rule, regulation or other
provision of law, whichever provision is more restrictive or imposes higher
protective standards for human or environmental health, safety, and welfare, shall
control.

Private Agreements

This ordinance is not intended to revoke or repeal any easement, covenant, or
other private agreement. However, where the regulations of this ordinance are
more restrictive or impose higher standards or requirements than such easement,
covenant, or other private agreement, then the requirements of this ordinance shall



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

govern. Nothing in this ordinance shall modify or repeal any private covenant or
deed restriction, but such covenant or restriction shall not legitimize any failure to
comply with this ordinance. In no case shall the Town of Mint Hill be obligated to
enforce the provisions of any easements, covenants, or agreements between
private parties.

(109) SEVERABILITY

(110)

If the provisions of any section, subsection, paragraph, subdivision or clause of this
ordinance shall be adjudged invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, such judgment
shall not affect or invalidate the remainder of any section, subsection, paragraph,
subdivision or clause of this ordinance.

EFFECTIVE DATE AND TRANSITIONAL PROVISIONS

A)

(B)

Effective Date

This ordinance shall take effect on March 11, 2010.

Violations Continue

Any violation of the provisions of this ordinance existing as of the effective date
of this ordinance shall continue to be a violation under this ordinance and be

subject to penalties and enforcement unless the use, development, construction, or
other activity complies with the provisions of this ordinance.



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

6.8.2 ADMINISTRATION AND PROCEDURES

(201) REVIEW AND DECISION MAKING ENTITIES

(A) Storm Water Administrator

a Designation

The Mecklenburg County Water Quality Program Manager has been
designated as the Storm Water Administrator by the Town of Mint Hill for
the purpose of administering and enforcing this ordinance.

?2) Powers and Duties

In addition to the powers and duties that may be conferred by other
provisions of the Town of Mint Hill Zoning Ordinance and other laws, the
Storm Water Administrator shall have the following powers and duties
under this ordinance:

(@)
(b)
(©
(d)
(©)

®

(2
(h)
(@)
)

To review and approve or disapprove applications submitted
pursuant to this ordinance.

To make determinations and render interpretations of this
ordinance.

To establish application requirements and schedules for submittal
and review of applications and appeals.

To enforce this ordinance in accordance with its enforcement
provisions.

To maintain records, maps, and official materials as related to the
adoption, amendment, enforcement, or administration of this
ordinance.

To provide expertise and technical assistance upon request to the
Town of Mint Hill and the Storm Water Advisory Committee
(SWACQ).

To designate appropriate other person(s) who shall carry out the
powers and duties of the Storm Water Administrator.

To provide information and recommendations relative to variances
and information as requested by SWAC in response to appeals.
To take any other action necessary to administer the provisions of
this ordinance.

To provide information to the EMC in response to appeals and
variances within the Goose Creek Watershed.

(202) REVIEW PROCEDURES

(A) Permit Required; Must Apply for Permit

A Storm Water Management Permit is required for all development and

10



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(B)

©

D)

redevelopment unless exempt pursuant to this ordinance. A permit may only be
issued subsequent to a properly submitted, reviewed and approved permit
application, pursuant to this Section. The content and form of the permit shall be
established by the Storm Water Administrator.

Effect of Permit

A Storm Water Management Permit shall govern the design, installation, and
construction of storm water management and control practices on the site,
including structural BMPs and elements of site design for storm water
management other than structural BMPs.

The permit is intended to provide a mechanism for the review, approval, and
inspection of the approach to be used for the management and control of storm
water for the development or redevelopment site consistent with the requirements
of this ordinance, whether the approach consists of structural BMPs or other
techniques such as low-impact or low-density design. Compliance after project
construction is assured by the maintenance provision of this ordinance.

Authority to File Applications

All applications required pursuant to this ordinance shall be submitted to the
Storm Water Administrator by the land-ewsnerlandowner or the land
ewner’slandowner’s duly authorized agent or anyone having interest in the
property by reason of a written contract with the owner.

Establishment of Application Requirements, Schedule, and Fees
@ Application Contents and Form

The Storm Water Administrator shall establish requirements for the
content and form of all applications and shall amend and update those
requirements from time to time. At a minimum, the Storm Water
Management Permit Application shall describe in detail how post-
construction storm water runoff will be controlled and managed, the
design of all storm water facilities and practices, and how the proposed
project will meet the requirements of this ordinance.

?2) Submission Schedule

The Storm Water Administrator shall establish a submission schedule for
applications. The schedule shall establish deadlines by which complete
applications must be submitted for the purpose of ensuring that there is
adequate time to review applications, and that the various stages in the
review process are accommodated.

11



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(E)

)

A3) Permit Review Fees

The Town of Mint Hill shall establish permit review fees as well as
policies regarding refund of any fees upon withdrawal of an application;
and may amend and update the fees and policies from time to time.

“4) Administrative Manual

For applications required under this ordinance, the Storm Water
Administrator shall compile into an Administrative Manual the application
requirements, submittal checklist, submission schedule, fee schedule,
maintenance agreements, a copy of this ordinance, and where to obtain the
Design Manual, as well as other information and materials necessary for
the effective administration of this ordinance. This Administrative
Manual shall be made available to the public.

Submittal of Complete Application

Applications shall be submitted to the Storm Water Administrator pursuant to the
application submittal schedule in the form established by the Storm Water
Administrator, along with the appropriate fee established pursuant to this Section.

An application shall be considered as timely submitted only when it contains all
elements of a complete application pursuant to this ordinance, along with the
appropriate fee. If the Storm Water Administrator finds that an application is
incomplete, the applicant shall be notified of the deficient elements and shall be
provided with an opportunity to submit a complete application. However, the
submittal of an incomplete application shall not suffice to meet a deadline
contained in the submission schedule established above.

Review

Within 30 working days after a complete application is submitted, the Storm
Water Administrator shall review the application and determine whether the
application complies with the standards of this ordinance.

(6)) Approval

If the Storm Water Administrator finds that the application complies with
the standards of this ordinance, the Storm Water Administrator shall
approve the application and issue a Storm Water Management Permit to
the applicant. The Storm Water Administrator may impose conditions of
approval as needed to ensure compliance with this ordinance. The
conditions shall be included in the permit as part of the approval.

12



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

?2) Fails to Comply

If the Storm Water Administrator finds that the application fails to comply
with the standards of this ordinance, the Storm Water Administrator shall
notify the applicant and shall indicate how the application fails to comply.
The applicant shall have an opportunity to submit a revised application.

A3) Revision and Subsequent Review

A complete revised application shall be reviewed by the Storm Water
Administrator within 15 working days after its re-submittal and shall be
approved, approved with conditions or disapproved.

If a revised application is not re-submitted within sixty (60) calendar days
from the date the applicant was notified, the application shall be
considered withdrawn, and a new submittal for the same or substantially
the same project shall be required along with the appropriate fee.

(203) APPLICATIONS FOR APPROVAL

A)

Concept Plan and Consultation Meeting

A Concept Plan shall be submitted to and approved by the Storm Water
Administrator prior to approval of the preliminary plan for a project and prior to
submittal of a Storm Water Management Permit Application. The Concept Plan
should be submitted for review along with Sketch Plans for the project. The
purpose of the Concept Plan is to demonstrate how a proposed project shall
comply with the post-construction ordinance requirements in the early stages of
project design.

At the time of submittal of a Concept Plan, the Storm Water Administrator or lané
ewnerlandowner or the land-ewner’slandowner’s duly authorized agent or anyone
having interest in the property by reason of a written contract with the owner may
request consultation(s) on the Concept Plan for the post-construction storm water
management system to be utilized in the proposed development project. This
consultation meeting(s) should take place at the time of the preliminary plan of
the subdivision or other early step in the development process. The purpose of this
meeting(s) is to discuss the post-construction storm water management measures
necessary for the proposed project, as well as to discuss and assess constraints,
opportunities and potential approaches to storm water management designs before
formal site design engineering is commenced. Local watershed plans and other
relevant resource protection plans may be consulted in the discussion of the
Concept Plan.

To accomplish this goal, the following information should be included in the
Concept Plan, which should be submitted in advance of the meeting as specified

13



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(B)

in the Administrative Manual:

M

@

3

Existing Conditions / Proposed Site Plans

A Concept Plan shall include existing conditions and proposed site layout
sketch plans, which illustrate at a minimum: existing and proposed
topography; perennial and intermittent streams; mapping of predominant
soils from soil surveys; boundaries of existing predominant vegetation and
proposed limits of clearing and grading; proposed Undisturbed Open
Space area; and location of existing and proposed roads, buildings,
parking areas and other built-upon areas.

Natural Resources Inventory

A Concept Plan submitted prior to a consultation meeting shall include a
written or graphic inventory of the natural resources at the site and
surrounding area as it exists prior to the commencement of the project.
This description should include a discussion of soil conditions, forest
cover, geologic features, topography, wetlands, and native vegetative areas
on the site, as well as the location and boundaries of other natural feature
protection and conservation areas such as lakes, ponds, floodplains, stream
buffers and other setbacks (e.g., drinking water well setbacks, septic
system setbacks, etc.). Particular attention should be paid to
environmentally- sensitive features that provide particular opportunities or
constraints for development.

Storm Water Management System Concept Plan

A Concept Plan shall include the proposed post-development storm water
management system including: preliminary selection and location of
proposed structural storm water controls; low impact design elements;
location of existing and proposed conveyance systems such as grass
channels, swales, and storm drains; flow paths; location of proposed
Undisturbed Open Space areas; location of all floodplain/floodway limits;
relationship of site to upstream and downstream properties and drainages;
location of all stream buffers; and preliminary location of proposed stream
channel modifications, such as bridge or culvert crossings.

Storm Water Management Permit Application

The Storm Water Management Permit Application shall detail how post-
construction storm water runoff will be controlled and managed and how the
proposed project will meet the requirements of this ordinance, including Section
3, Standards. All such plans submitted with the application shall be prepared by a
registered North Carolina professional engineer or landscape architect. The
engineer or landscape architect shall perform services only in their area of

14



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

©

competence; and shall verify that the design of all storm water management
facilities and practices meets the submittal requirements for complete
applications, that the designs and plans are sufficient to comply with applicable
standards and policies found in the Design Manual, and that the designs and plans
ensure compliance with this ordinance.

The submittal shall include all of the information required in the submittal
checklist established by the Storm Water Administrator. Incomplete submittals
shall be treated pursuant to Section 202(E).

As-Built Plans and Final Approval

The applicant shall certify that the completed project is in accordance with the
approved storm water management plans and designs; and shall submit actual “as-
built” plans for all storm water management facilities or practices after final
construction is completed. Failure to provide approved as-built plans within the
time frame specified by the Storm Water Administrator may result in assessment
of penalties as specified in Section 6, Violations and Enforcement. At the
discretion of the Storm Water Administrator, performance securities or bonds
may be required for storm water management facilities or practices until as-built
plans are approved.

As-built plans shall show the final design specifications for all storm water
management facilities and practices and the field location, size, depth, and planted
vegetation of all measures, controls, and devices, as installed, and location and
size of all Open Space areas and tree plantings. The designer of the storm water
management measures and plans shall certify, under seal, that the as-built storm
water measures, controls, and devices are in compliance with the approved storm
water management plans and designs and with the requirements of this ordinance.

Final as-built plans and a final inspection and approval by the Storm Water
Administrator are required before a project is determined to be in compliance with
this ordinance. At the discretion of the Storm Water Administrator, certificates of
occupancy may be withheld pending receipt of as-built plans and the completion
of a final inspection and approval of a project.

(204) APPROVALS

A)

Effect of Approval

Approval authorizes the applicant to go forward with only the specific plans and
activity authorized in the permit. The approval shall not be construed to exempt
the applicant from obtaining other applicable approvals from local, State, and
federal authorities.

@ Time Limit/Expiration

15



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

A Storm Water Management Permit and accompanying plan approved
under the provisions of this ordinance shall remain valid for a period of
three years from the date of approval. If no work on the site in furtherance
of the plan has commenced within the three-year period, the permit and
plan approval will become null, and void and a new application will be
required to develop the site. If work on the site in furtherance of the plan
has commenced that involves any utility installations or street
improvements except grading, the permit and plan shall remain valid and
in force and the project may be completed in accordance with the
approved plan.

(205) APPEALS AND VARIANCES

The provisions of this Section shall apply to appeals and variances in the Catawba, Clear
Creek, and Goose Creek Districts as described in Section 105(E) of this ordinance with
the exception of appeals and variances pertaining to stream buffers located in the Goose
Creek District, which shall be subject to the requirements contained in Section
305(C)(10) of this ordinance.

A)

(B)

Powers and Duties of the Storm Water Advisory Committee

The Storm Water Advisory Committee, hereinafter referred to as SWAC, shall
have the following powers and duties:

) Administrative Review

To hear and decide appeals according to the procedures set forth in this
Section; where it is alleged there is an error in any order, decision,
determination, or interpretation made by the Storm Water Administrator in
the enforcement of this ordinance, including assessments of remedies
and/or penalties.

?2) Variances

To grant variances in specific cases from the terms of this ordinance
according to the standards and procedures herein.

Petition to SWAC for Appeal or Variance

An appeal may be initiated by any aggrieved person affected by any decision,
order, requirement, or determination relating to the interpretation or application of
this ordinance. A petition for variance from the requirements of this ordinance
may be initiated by the owner of the affected property, an agent authorized in
writing to act on the owner’s behalf, or a person having written contractual
interest in the affected property.

16



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

M

0]

©)}

Filing of Notice of Appeal

A notice of appeal shall be filed with the Storm Water Administrator
contesting any order, decision, determination or interpretation within 30
working days of the day of the order, decision, determination or
interpretation made or rendered by the Storm Water Administrator in the
enforcement of this ordinance, including assessments of remedies and
penalties. SWAC may waive or extend the 30--day deadline only upon
determining that the person filing the notice of appeal received no actual
or constructive form of notice of the order, decision, determination or
interpretation being appealed. The notice filed with the Storm Water
Administrator shall be accompanied by a nonrefundable filing fee as
established by SWAC as well as a list of adjoining properties including tax
parcel numbers and the name and address of each owner. Failure to timely
file such notice and fee shall constitute a waiver of any rights to appeal
under this ordinance.

Upon receipt of a notice of appeal, the Storm Water Administrator shall
transmit to SWAC copies of all administrative papers, records, and other
information regarding the subject matter of the appeal.

The filing of such notice shall stay any proceedings in furtherance of the
contested action, except the Storm Water Administrator may certify in
writing to SWAC that because of facts stated in the certificate, a stay
imposes an imminent peril to life or property or would seriously interfere
with the enforcement of this ordinance. SWAC shall then review such
certificate and may override the stay of further proceedings.

Filing a Variance Petition

A petition for variance, in the form prescribed by SWAC, shall be filed
with the Storm Water Administrator accompanied by a nonrefundable
filing fee as established by SWAC as well as a list of adjoining properties
including tax parcel numbers and the name and address of each owner.
Upon receipt of a variance petition, the Storm Water Administrator shall
transmit to SWAC copies of all information regarding the variance.

Notice and Hearing

SWAC shall, in accordance with the rules adopted by it for such purposes,
hold public hearings on any appeal or variance petition which comes
before it. SWAC shall, prior to the hearing, mail written notice of the
time, place and subject of the hearing to the person or persons filing the
notice of appeal or variance petition, to the owners of the subject property
and to the owners of property adjacent to the subject property. The

17



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

“@

)

(6)

U

hearing shall be conducted in the nature of a quasi-judicial proceeding
with all findings of fact supported by competent, material evidence.

Standards for Granting an Appeal

SWAC shall reverse or modify the order, decision, determination or
interpretation under appeal only upon finding an error in the application of
this ordinance on the part of the Storm Water Administrator. In modifying
the order, decision, determination or interpretation, SWAC shall have all
the powers of the Storm Water Administrator from whom the appeal is
taken.

If SWAC finds that a violation of this ordinance has occurred, but that in
setting the amount of the penalty the Storm Water Administrator has not
considered or given appropriate weight to either mitigating or aggravating
factors, SWAC shall either decrease or increase the per day civil penalty
within the range allowed by this ordinance. Any decision of SWAC that
modifies the amount of a civil penalty shall include, as part of the findings
of fact and conclusions of law, findings as to which mitigating or
aggravating factors exist and the appropriate weight that should have been
given to such factors by the Storm Water Administrator in setting the
amount of the civil penalty levied against the Petitioner.

Standards for Granting a Variance

Before granting a variance, SWAC shall have made all the following

findings:

(a) Unnecessary hardships would result from the strict application of
this ordinance.

(b) The hardships result from conditions that are peculiar to the
property, such as the location, size or topography of the property.

(c) The hardships did not result from actions taken by the petitioner.

(d) The requested variance is consistent with the spirit, purpose, and
intent of this ordinance; will secure public safety and welfare; and
will preserve substantial justice.

Variance Conditions

SWAC may impose reasonable and appropriate conditions and safeguards
upon any variance it grants.

Action by SWAC
SWAC bylaws will determine the number of concurring votes needed to

grant an appeal or request for variance. SWAC shall grant or deny the
variance or shall reverse, affirm or modify the order, decision,

18



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

©

determination or interpretation under appeal by recording in the minutes of
the meeting the reasons that SWAC used, and the findings of fact and
conclusions of law made by SWAC to reach its decision.

(¢)] Rehearing

SWAC shall refuse to hear an appeal or variance petition which has been
previously denied unless it finds there have been substantial changes in the
conditions or circumstances relating to the matter.

Review by Superior Court

Every decision of SWAC shall be subject to Superior Court review by

proceedings in the nature of certiorari. Petition for review by the Superior Court

shall be filed with the Clerk of Superior Court within thirty (30) days after the

later occurring of the following:

1) The decision of SWAC is filed; or

2 A written copy thereof is delivered to every aggrieved party who has filed
a written request for such copy with SWAC at the time of its hearing of
the case.

19



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

6.8.3

STANDARDS

(301) GENERAL STANDARDS

(302)

(303)

All development and redevelopment to which this ordinance applies shall comply with
the standards of this Section.

WATERSHED DISTRICTS

Standards for development and redevelopment vary depending on the watershed district
in which a project is located as described in the “Post-Construction Ordinance Map of the
Town of Mint Hill, North Carolina,” which is adopted simultaneously herewith as
described in Section 105(E). The Town of Mint Hill is divided into the following
watershed districts for purposes of this ordinance.

A

(B)

©

Catawba District

That area of land that drains to Irvins Creek in the Catawba River basin in the
Town of Mint Hill and its extraterritorial jurisdiction, including all creeks and
tributaries.

Clear Creek District

That area of land that drains to Clear Creek, including Sherman Branch and Long
Branch in the Yadkin River basin in the Town of Mint Hill and its extraterritorial
jurisdiction, including all creeks and tributaries.

Goose Creek District

That area of land that drains to Goose, Stevens and Duck Creeks in the Yadkin

River basin in the Town of Mint Hill and its extraterritorial jurisdiction, including
all creeks and tributaries.

DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR CATAWBA DISTRICT

A)

Development Standards for Low Density Projects

Any drainage area within a project is considered low density when said drainage
area has less than 24% built upon area as determined by the methodology
established in the Design Manual. Such low-density projects shall comply with
each of the following standards.

1) Vegetated Conveyances
Storm water runoff from the development shall be transported from the

development by vegetated conveyances to the maximum extent
practicable.

20



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

?2) Stream Buffers

() Stream Buffer Delineation
The S.W.L.M. Stream Buffer requirements apply as described in
the Town of Mint Hill’s Zoning Ordinance. S.W.L.M. Stream
Buffers shall be delineated by Mecklenburg County through its
geographic information system (GIS) using the most current digital
elevation model (DEM) of no greater than 10-foot cells. This
stream buffer delineation including buffer widths shall be
periodically updated as new data becomes available. The most
recent delineation shall be maintained for public use on
Mecklenburg County’s website.

(b) Stream Buffer Widths
All streams draining less than 50 acres shall have a minimum 30-
foot vegetated stream buffer including a 10-foot zone adjacent to
the bank. Disturbance of the stream buffer is allowed; however,
any disturbed area must be revegetated and disturbance of the 10-
foot zone adjacent to the bank shall require stream bank
stabilization using bioengineering techniques as specified in the
Design Manual. All perennial and intermittent streams draining
greater than or equal to 50 acres and less than 300 acres shall have
a 35-foot stream buffer with two (2) zones, including a 20-foot
stream side and 15-foot upland zone. Streams draining greater
than or equal to 300 acres and less than 640 acres shall have a 50-
foot stream buffer with three (3) zones, including a 20-foot stream
side, 20-foot managed use and 10-foot upland zone. Stream
buffers for streams draining greater than or equal to 640 acres shall
be 100 feet in width or include the entire floodplain, whichever is
greater. This stream buffer shall consist of a 30-foot stream side,
45-foot managed use and 25-foot upland zone or the entire FEMA
floodplain, whichever is greater. Stream buffer widths shall be
measured horizontally on a line perpendicular to the surface water,
landward from the top of the bank on each side of the stream. The
table below provides a summary of minimum stream buffer widths.

Minimum Stream Buffer Widths by Basin Size and Buffer Zone.

Area Stream Managed Upland Total Buffer Width
Designation | Side Zone | Use Zone Zone each side of Stream
< 50 acres N/A N/A N/A 30 feet (vegetated)
> 50 acres 20 feet None 15 feet 35 feet
>300 acres | 20 feet 20 feet 10 feet 50 feet
> 640 acres | 30 feet 45 feet 25 feet or 100 feet or floodplain,

floodplain | whichever is greater

21




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(B)

Development Standards for High Density Projects

Any drainage area within a project is considered high density when said drainage
area has greater than or equal to 24% built upon area as determined by the
methodology established in the Design Manual. Such high-density projects shall
implement storm water treatment systems that comply with each of the following
standards.

M

@

3

C))

Storm Water Quality Treatment Volume

Storm water quality treatment systems shall treat the runoff generated
from the first inch of rainfall.

Storm Water Quality Treatment

All structural storm water treatment systems used to meet these
requirements shall be designed to have a minimum of 85% average annual
removal for Total Suspended Solids. Low Impact Development
techniques as described in the Design Manual can be used to meet this
requirement.

Storm Water Treatment System Design

General engineering design criteria for all projects shall be in accordance
with 15A NCAC 2H .1008(c), as explained in the Design Manual.

Stream Buffers

(a) Stream Buffer Delineation
The S.W.LM. Stream Buffer requirements apply as described in
the Town of Mint Hill’s Zoning Ordinance. S.W.L.M. Stream
Buffers, throughout the jurisdiction of the Town of Mint Hill, shall
be delineated by Mecklenburg County through its geographic
information system (GIS) using the most current digital elevation
model (DEM) of no greater than 10-foot cells. This stream buffer
delineation including stream buffer widths shall be periodically
updated as new data becomes available. The most recent
delineation shall be provided for public use through Mecklenburg
County’s website.

(b) Stream Buffer Widths
All streams draining less than 50 acres shall have a minimum 30-
foot vegetated stream buffer including a 10-foot zone adjacent to
the bank. Disturbance of the stream buffer is allowed; however,
any disturbed area must be revegetated and disturbance of the 10-
foot zone adjacent to the bank shall require stream bank

22



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

stabilization using bioengineering techniques as specified in the
Design Manual. All perennial and intermittent streams draining
greater than or equal to 50 acres and less than 300 acres shall have
a 35-foot stream buffer with two (2) zones, including a 20-foot
stream side and 15-foot upland zone. Streams draining greater
than or equal to 300 acres and less than 640 acres shall have a 50-
foot stream buffer with three (3) zones, including a 20-foot stream
side, 20-foot managed use and 10-foot upland zone. Stream
buffers for streams draining greater than or equal to 640 acres shall
be 100 feet in width or include the entire floodplain, whichever is
greater. This stream buffer shall consist of a 30-foot stream side,
45-foot managed use and 25-foot upland zone or the entire FEMA
floodplain, whichever is greater. Stream buffer widths shall be
measured horizontally on a line perpendicular to the surface water,
landward from the top of the bank on each side of the stream. The
table below provides a summary of minimum stream buffer widths.

Minimum Stream Buffer Widths by Basin Size and Buffer Zone.

Area Stream Managed Upland Total Buffer Width
Designation | Side Zone | Use Zone Zone each Side of Stream
<50 acres N/A N/A N/A 30 feet (vegetated)
> 50 acres 20 feet None 15 feet 35 feet
>300 acres | 20 feet 20 feet 10 feet 50 feet
> 640 acres | 30 feet 45 feet 25 feet or 100 feet or entire

balance of FEMA floodplain,
floodplain whichever is greater

3

(©6)

Storm Water Volume Control

Storm water treatment systems shall be installed to control the volume
leaving the project site at post-development for the 1-year, 24-hour storm.
Runoff volume drawdown time shall be a minimum of 24 hours, but not
more than 120 hours.

Storm Water Peak Control

For residential developments exceeding 24% built-upon area, peak control
shall be installed for the appropriate storm frequency (i.e., 10, 25, 50 or
100-yr, 6-hr) as determined by the Storm Water Administrator based on a
downstream flood analysis provided by the owner or designee using the
criteria specified in the Design Manual or if a downstream analysis is not
performed the peak shall be controlled for the 10-yr and 25-yr, 6-hr
storms. For commercial development exceeding 24% built-upon area,
peak control shall be installed for the 10-yr, 6-hr storm and additional
peak control provided for the appropriate storm frequency (i.e., 25, 50 or
100-yr, 6-hr) as determined by the Storm Water Administrator based on a

23




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

downstream flood analysis provided by the owner or designee using the
criteria specified in the Design Manual or if a downstream analysis is not
performed the peak shall be controlled for the 10-yr and 25-yr, 6-hr
storms. Controlling the 1-year, 24-hour volume achieves peak control for
the 2-year, 6-hour storm. The emergency overflow and outlet works for
any pond or wetland constructed as a storm water BMP shall be capable of
safely passing a discharge with a minimum recurrence frequency as
specified in the Design Manual. For detention basins, the temporary
storage capacity shall be restored within 72 hours. Requirements of the
Dam Safety Act shall be met when applicable.

(304) DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR CLEAR CREEK DISTRICT

A)

Development Standards for Low Density Projects

Any drainage area within a project is considered low density when said drainage
area has less than 12% built upon area as determined by the methodology
established in the Design Manual. Such low-density projects shall comply with
each of the following standards.

M

@

Vegetated Conveyances

Storm water runoff from the development shall be transported from the
development by vegetated conveyances to the maximum extent
practicable.

Stream Buffers

() Stream Buffer Delineation
The S.W.L.M. Stream Buffer requirements apply as described in
the Town of Mint Hill’s Zoning Ordinance. S.W.L.M. Stream
Buffers, throughout the jurisdiction of the Town of Mint Hill, shall
be delineated by Mecklenburg County through its geographic
information system (GIS) using the most current digital elevation
model (DEM) of no greater than 10-foot cells. This stream buffer
delineation including stream buffer widths shall be periodically
updated as new data becomes available. The most recent
delineation shall be provided for public use through Mecklenburg
County’s website.

(b) Stream Buffer Widths
All streams draining less than 50 acres shall have a minimum 30-
foot vegetated stream buffer including a 10-foot zone adjacent to
the bank. Disturbance of the stream buffer is allowed; however,
any disturbed area must be revegetated and disturbance of the 10-
foot zone adjacent to the bank shall require stream bank
stabilization using bioengineering techniques as specified in the
Design Manual. All perennial and intermittent streams draining

24



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

(B)

greater than or equal to 50 acres and less than 300 acres shall have
a 35-foot stream buffer with two (2) zones, including a 20-foot
stream side and 15-foot upland zone. Streams draining greater
than or equal to 300 acres and less than 640 acres shall have a 50-
foot stream buffer with three (3) zones, including a 20-foot stream
side, 20-foot managed use and 10-foot upland zone. Stream
buffers for streams draining greater than or equal to 640 acres shall
be 100 feet in width or include the entire floodplain, whichever is
greater. This stream buffer shall consist of a 30-foot stream side,
45-foot managed use and 25-foot upland zone or the entire FEMA
floodplain, whichever is greater. Stream buffer widths shall be
measured horizontally on a line perpendicular to the surface water,
landward from the top of the bank on each side of the stream. The
table below provides a summary of minimum stream buffer widths.

Minimum Stream Buffer Widths by Basin Size and Buffer Zone.

Area Stream Managed Upland Total Buffer Width
Designation | Side Zone | Use Zone Zone each Side of Stream
<50 acres N/A N/A N/A 30 feet (vegetated)
> 50 acres 20 feet None 15 feet 35 feet
>300 acres | 20 feet 20 feet 10 feet 50 feet
> 640 acres | 30 feet 45 feet 25 feet or 100 feet or entire

balance of FEMA floodplain,
floodplain whichever is greater

Development Standards For High Density Projects

Any drainage area within a project is considered high density when said drainage
area has greater than or equal to 12% built upon area as determined by the

methodology established in the Design Manual. Such high-density projects shall
implement storm water treatment systems that comply with each of the following

standards.

) Storm Water Quality Treatment Volume

Storm water quality treatment systems shall treat the runoff generated
from the first inch of rainfall.

?2) Storm Water Quality Treatment

All structural storm water treatment systems used to meet these
requirements shall be designed to have a minimum of 85% average annual
removal for Total Suspended Solids. Low Impact Development
techniques as described in the Design Manual can be used to meet this
requirement.

25




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

A3 Storm Water Treatment System Design

General engineering design criteria for all projects shall be in accordance
with 15A NCAC 2H .1008(c), as explained in the Design Manual.

“4) Stream Buffers

(a) Stream Buffer Delineation
The S.W.LM. Stream Buffer requirements apply as described in
the Town of Mint Hill’s Zoning Ordinance. S.W.L.M. Stream
Buffers, throughout the jurisdiction of the Town of Mint Hill, shall
be delineated by Mecklenburg County through its geographic
information system (GIS) using the most current digital elevation
model (DEM) of no greater than 10-foot cells. This stream buffer
delineation including stream buffer widths shall be periodically
updated as new data becomes available. The most recent
delineation shall be provided for public use through Mecklenburg
County’s website.

(b) Stream Buffer Widths
All streams draining less than 50 acres shall have a minimum 30-
foot vegetated stream buffer including a 10-foot zone adjacent to
the bank. Disturbance of the stream buffer is allowed; however,
any disturbed area must be revegetated and disturbance of the 10-
foot zone adjacent to the bank shall require stream bank
stabilization using bioengineering techniques as specified in the
Design Manual. All perennial and intermittent streams draining
greater than or equal to 50 acres and less than 300 acres shall have
a 35-foot stream buffer with two (2) zones, including a 20-foot
stream side and 15-foot upland zone. Streams draining greater
than or equal to 300 acres and less than 640 acres shall have a 50-
foot stream buffer with three (3) zones, including a 20-foot stream
side, 20-foot managed use and 10-foot upland zone. Stream
buffers for streams draining greater than or equal to 640 acres shall
be 100 feet in width or include the entire floodplain, whichever is
greater. This stream buffer shall consist of a 30-foot stream side,
45-foot managed use and 25-foot upland zone or the entire FEMA
floodplain, whichever is greater. Stream buffer widths shall be
measured horizontally on a line perpendicular to the surface water,
landward from the top of the bank on each side of the stream. The
table below provides a summary of minimum stream buffer widths.

Minimum Stream Buffer Widths by Basin Size and Buffer Zone.

Area Stream Managed Upland Total Buffer Width
Designation | Side Zone | Use Zone Zone each Side of Stream
< 50 acres N/A N/A N/A 30 feet (vegetated)

26




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

> 50 acres 20 feet None 15 feet 35 feet
>300 acres | 20 feet 20 feet 10 feet 50 feet
> 640 acres | 30 feet 45 feet 25 feet or 100 feet or entire

balance of FEMA floodplain,
floodplain whichever is greater

)

(©)

Storm Water Volume Control

Storm water treatment systems shall be installed to control the volume
leaving the project site at post-development for the 1-year, 24-hour storm.
Runoff volume drawdown time shall be a minimum of 24 hours, but not
more than 120 hours.

Storm Water Peak Control

For residential developments exceeding 12% built-upon area, peak control
shall be installed for the appropriate storm frequency (i.e., 10, 25, 50 or
100-yr, 6-hr) as determined by the Storm Water Administrator based on a
downstream flood analysis provided by the owner or designee using the
criteria specified in the Design Manual or if a downstream analysis is not
performed the peak shall be controlled for the 10-yr and 25-yr, 6-hr
storms. For commercial development exceeding 12% built-upon area,
peak control shall be installed for the 10-yr, 6-hr storm and additional
peak control provided for the appropriate storm frequency (i.e., 25, 50 or
100-yr, 6-hr) as determined by the Storm Water Administrator based on a
downstream flood analysis provided by the owner or designee using the
criteria specified in the Design Manual or if a downstream analysis is not
performed the peak shall be controlled for the 10-yr and 25-yr, 6-hr
storms. Controlling the 1-year, 24-hour volume achieves peak control for
the 2-year, 6-hour storm. The emergency overflow and outlet works for
any pond or wetland constructed as a storm water BMP shall be capable of
safely passing a discharge with a minimum recurrence frequency as
specified in the Design Manual. For detention basins, the temporary
storage capacity shall be restored within 72 hours. Requirements of the
Dam Safety Act shall be met when applicable.

(305) DEVELOPMENT STANDARDS FOR GOOSE CREEK DISTRICT

A)

Storm Water Control Requirements

M

Delegation of Authority

The storm water control requirements contained in Section 305(A) of this
ordinance are adopted pursuant to the adoption by the N.C. Environmental
Management Commission of the “Site Specific Water Quality
Management Plan for the Goose Creek Watershed” (hereinafter referred to

27




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

as “the Plan”) promulgated under 15A NCAC 02B .0601 and 15A NCAC

02B .0602. The authority to implement and enforce the Plan has been

delegated by the N.C. Environmental Management Commission to the

N.C. Division of Water Quality. The Plan authorizes the N.C.

Environmental Management Commission to grant and rescind local

government delegation of the authority to implement and enforce the

storm water control requirements within the Plan in accordance with the
provisions of 15A NCAC 02B.0602(c). In the absence of such local
delegation of authority, the provisions of Section 305(A) of this ordinance
shall apply; however, plan approvals and determinations for storm water

control requirements shall be performed by the Director of the N.C.

Division of Water Quality for compliance with the Plan as well as the

local Storm Water Administrator for the Town of Mint Hill for

compliance with this ordinance. Upon issuance of local delegation of
authority, plan approvals and determinations for storm water control
requirements shall be made by the Storm Water Administrator. The
following conditions shall apply to this local delegation of authority:

(a) The Storm Water Administrator has the authority to implement and
enforce the State’s storm water control requirements within the
Town of Mint Hill’s jurisdiction following the delegation of such
authority by the N.C. Environmental Management Commission.

(b) The Storm Water Administrator shall maintain on-site records for a
minimum of five years and must furnish a copy of these records to
the Director of the N.C. Division of Water Quality within 30 days
of receipt of a written request for the records. The N.C. Division
of Water Quality may inspect Mint Hill’s storm water programs to
ensure that the programs are being implemented and enforced in
keeping with an approved delegation.

(© The N.C. Environmental Management Commission, upon
determination that the Storm Water Administrator is failing to
implement or enforce the requirements in keeping with a
delegation, shall notify the Storm Water Administrator in writing
of the inadequacies. If the Storm Water Administrator has not
corrected the deficiencies within 90 days of receipt of the written
notification, then the N.C. Environmental Management
Commission shall rescind the delegation of authority to the Storm
Water Administrator and shall implement and enforce the State's
storm water requirements.

(d) The N.C. Environmental Management Commission shall have
jurisdiction to the exclusion of the Storm Water Administrator to
implement the State's storm water protection requirements for the
following types of activities:

1) Activities undertaken by the State:,

(ii) Activities undertaken by the United States:-,

(iii)  Activities undertaken by multiple jurisdictions:, and
(iv)  Activities undertaken by local units of government.

28



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

@

©)}

C))

)

(©6)

Applicability

As of March 11, 2010 (effective date of this ordinance), the following
storm water control requirements shall apply to all development and
redevelopment activity that disturbs one acre or more of land within the
Goose Creek District and that will result in the addition of built-upon area,
with the exception of NC Department of Transportation and N.C.
Turnpike Authority activities that shall be regulated in accordance with
provisions of that agency's NPDES Storm Water Permit. The Undisturbed
Open Space requirements contained in Section 403 of this ordinance shall
not apply to any redevelopment or to development that has less than 20%
built-upon area.

Storm Water Quality Treatment Volume

Structural storm water quality treatment systems shall be used to control
and treat the difference in the storm water runoff from the predevelopment
and post-development conditions for the 1-year, 24-hour storm.

Storm Water Quality Treatment

All structural storm water quality treatment systems used to meet these
requirements shall be designed to have a minimum of 85% average annual
removal for Total Suspended Solids. Structural storm water quality
treatment systems that promote the infiltration of flows and groundwater
recharge as defined in the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Design Manual shall be
used within the Goose Creek District to maintain stream base flow. Ifitis
not practical to use these infiltration practices, a written explanation must
be submitted to the Storm Water Administrator along with the Concept
Plan Application described in Section 203(A) of this ordinance.

Storm Water Volume Control

Storm water treatment systems shall be installed to discharge the
difference in the storm water runoff volume from the predevelopment and
post-development conditions for the 1-year, 24-hour storm at a rate equal
or less than the pre-development discharge rate for the 1-year, 24-hour
storm. Runoff volume drawdown time shall be a minimum of 24 hours,
but no more than 120 hours.

Storm Water Peak Control
For residential developments exceeding 10% built-upon area, peak control
shall be installed for the appropriate storm frequency (i.e., 10, 25, 50 or

100-yr, 6-hr) as determined by the Storm Water Administrator based on a
downstream flood analysis provided by the owner or designee using the

29



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(B)

©

criteria specified in the Design Manual or if a downstream analysis is not
performed the peak shall be controlled for the 10-yr and 25-yr, 6-hr
storms. For commercial development exceeding 10% built-upon area,
peak control shall be installed for the 10-yr, 6-hr storm and additional
peak control provided for the appropriate storm frequency (i.e., 25, 50 or
100-yr, 6-hr) as determined by the Storm Water Administrator based on a
downstream flood analysis provided by the owner or designee using the
criteria specified in the Design Manual or if a downstream analysis is not
performed the peak shall be controlled for the 10-yr and 25-yr, 6-hr
storms. Controlling the 1-year, 24-hour volume achieves peak control for
the 2-year, 6-hour storm. The emergency overflow and outlet works for
any pond or wetland constructed as a storm water BMP shall be capable of
safely passing a discharge with a minimum recurrence frequency as
specified in the Design Manual. For detention basins, the temporary
storage capacity shall be restored within 72 hours. Requirements of the
Dam Safety Act shall be met when applicable; and

@) Storm Water Treatment System Design

General engineering design criteria for all projects shall be in accordance
with 15A NCAC 2H .1008(c), as explained in the Design Manual
described in Section 107 of this ordinance.

® Appeals and Variances

Pursuant to the local delegation of authority described in Section
305(A)(1) above, appeal and variance requests for storm water control
requirements within the Goose Creek District shall comply with Section
205 of this ordinance.

Control Toxicity Including Ammonia

No activity that results in direct or indirect discharge is allowed if it causes
toxicity to the Carolina heelsplitter (Lasmigona decorata) endangered mussel as
promulgated under 15A NCAC 02B .0604. For any direct or indirect discharge
that may cause ammonia toxicity to the Carolina heelsplitter freshwater mussel,
action shall be taken to reduce ammonia (NH3-N) inputs to achieve 0.5 milligrams
per liter or less of total ammonia based on chronic toxicity defined in 15A NCAC
02B .0202. This level of total ammonia is based on ambient water temperature
equal to or greater than 25 degrees Celsius.

Stream Buffer Requirements

(6)) Delegation of Authority

30



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

The stream buffer requirements contained in Section 305(C) of this
ordinance are adopted pursuant to the adoption by the N.C. Environmental
Management Commission of the “Site Specific Water Quality
Management Plan for the Goose Creek Watershed” (hereinafter referred to
as “the Plan”) promulgated under 15A NCAC 02B .0605, 15A NCAC 02B
.0606, 15A NCAC 02B .0607, ISA NCAC 02B .0608, and 15SA NCAC
02B .0609 effective February 1, 2009. The authority to implement and
enforce the Plan has been delegated by the N.C. Environmental
Management Commission to the N.C. Division of Water Quality. The
Plan authorizes the N.C. Environmental Management Commission to
grant and rescind local government delegation of the authority to
implement and enforce portions of the Plan in accordance with the
provisions of 15A NCAC 02B.0607(f), including the stream buffer
protection requirements contained in this Section. In the absence of such
local delegation of authority, the provisions of Section 305(C) of this
ordinance shall apply; however, plan approvals and determinations for
stream buffer requirements shall be performed by the Director of the N.C.
Division of Water Quality for compliance with the Plan as well as the
local Storm Water Administrator for the Town of Mint Hill for
compliance with this ordinance. Upon issuance of local delegation of
authority, plan approvals and determinations for stream buffer
requirements shall be made by the Storm Water Administrator. The
following conditions shall apply to this local delegation of authority:

(a) The Town of Mint Hill has designated the Storm Water
Administrator to coordinate the implementation and enforcement
of the stream buffer protection program as described in Section
305(C) of this ordinance. The Storm Water Administrator shall
attend an initial training session by the N.C. Division of Water
Quality and subsequent annual training sessions. The Storm Water
Administrator shall ensure that local government staffs working
directly with the program receive training to understand,
implement and enforce the program.

(b) The Storm Water Administrator has the authority to implement and
enforce the State’s stream buffer protection requirements within
the Town of Mint Hill’s jurisdiction following the delegation of
such authority by the N.C. Environmental Management
Commission.

(©) The Storm Water Administrator shall maintain on-site records for a
minimum of five years and must furnish a copy of these records to
the Director of the N.C. Division of Water Quality within 30 days
of receipt of a written request for the records. The N.C. Division
of the Water Quality may inspect the Storm Water Administrator’s
buffer protection programs to ensure that the programs are being
implemented and enforced. The Storm Water Administrator’s
records shall include the following:

(1) A copy of variance requests:,

31



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(i1) The variance request’s finding of fact:,

(iii)  The result of the variance proceedings:,

(iv) A record of complaints and action taken as a result of the
complaint,

) Records for stream origin calls and stream ratings:, and

(vi)  Copies of requests for authorization, records approving
authorization and Authorization Certificates.

(d) The N.C. Environmental Management Commission, upon
determination that the Storm Water Administrator is failing to
implement or enforce the stream buffer protection requirements in
keeping with an approved delegation, shall notify the Storm Water
Administrator in writing of the inadequacies. If the Storm Water
Administrator has not corrected the deficiencies within 90 days of
receipt of the written notification, then the N.C. Environmental
Management Commission shall rescind the delegation of authority
to the Storm Water Administrator and shall implement and enforce
the State’s stream buffer protection requirements.

(e) The N.C. Environmental Management Commission has
jurisdiction to the exclusion of the Storm Water Administrator to
implement the requirements of the State’s program for the
following types of activities:

(i) Activities undertaken by the State:,

(ii)  Activities undertaken by the United States:,

(iii)  Activities undertaken by multiple jurisdictions:,

(iv)  Activities undertaken by local units of government;, and
) Forestry operations.

2) Applicability

As of March 11, 2010 (effective date of this ordinance), the stream buffer
requirements contained in this Section shall apply to all properties located
within the Goose Creek District unless one of the following applies:
(a) A use is existing and ongoing within the stream buffer.
Only the portion of the stream buffer that contains the footprint of
the existing and ongoing use is exempt. Pursuant to Section
305(C)(1) above, the determination of whether a use is existing
and ongoing shall be made by the Storm Water Administrator. A
use is existing and ongoing when it is a completed and maintained
activity, an activity with appropriate valid permits, or an activity
with documentation for unexpired vested rights, as described
below:
i) A use that was present within the stream buffer as of
February 1, 2009 (effective date N.C. Site Specific Water
Quality Management Plan for Goose Creek) and has
continued since that time. Existing uses shall include
agriculture, buildings, industrial facilities, commercial

32



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

areas, transportation facilities, maintained lawns, utility

lines and on-site sanitary sewage systems. Change of

ownership through purchase or inheritance is not a change
of use. Activities necessary to maintain uses are allowed
provided that the site remains similarly vegetated, no built-
upon area is added within the stream buffer area where it

did not exist as of as February 1, 2009 and existing diffuse

flow is maintained.

(ii) A use that can be documented to the Storm Water
Administrator that meets at least one of the following
criteria prior to February 1, 2009:

@ Project requires a 401 Certification/404 Permit, and
such permits are still valid:,

(II)  Project requires a State permit, such as a landfill,
NPDES wastewater discharge, land application
residuals and road construction activities, and has
begun construction or is under contract to begin
construction and has received all required State
permits:,

(IIT)  Project is being reviewed through the Clean Water
Act Section 404/National Environmental Policy Act
Merger 01 Process or Safe Accountable Flexible
Efficient Transportation Equity Act; a Legacy for
Users (published by the US Army Corps of
Engineers and Federal Highway Administration,
2003) or its immediate successor and that have
reached agreement with Department of
Environment and Natural Resources on avoidance
and minimization, or

(IV)  Project is not required to be reviewed by the Clean
Water Act Section 404/National Environmental
Policy Act Merger 01 Process or Safe Accountable
Flexible Efficient Transportation Equity Act; a
Legacy for Users (published by the US Army Corps
of Engineers and Federal Highway Administration,
2003) or its immediate successor if a Finding of No
Significant Impact has been issued for the project
and the project has the written approval of the
Division of Water Quality.

(iii) At the time an existing use is changed to another use, the
stream buffer requirements contained in this Section shall
apply. Change of use includes the following:

1)) To add built-upon area within the stream buffer:,

(II)  An agricultural operation within the stream buffer is
converted to a non-agricultural:, or

33



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(II) A lawn within the stream buffer that ceases to be
maintained.

(b) Redevelopment of a structure that was present within the stream
buffer as of February 1, 2009 and has continued to exist since that
time provided the following conditions are met:

@) The redevelopment occurs on the same footprint as the
existing development.

(i1) Existing storm water controls remain, including diffuse
flow conditions.

(iii)  The redevelopment of nonresidential structures results in
the disturbance of less than a half-acre.

(iv)  The site remains vegetated in a manner similar to existing
conditions.

) Applicable storm water control requirements of Section
305(A) of this ordinance are met.

(c) Land within a riparian buffer area in which neither the State nor its
subdivisions ketdshold any property interest may be used by the
property owner to satisfy any other development-related regulatory
requirements based on property size, including, but not limited to:
1) Residential density and nonresidential intensity calculations

and yields.
(i1) Tree conservation purposes.
(iii)  Open space or conservation area requirements.
(iv)  Setbacks.
) Perimeter buffers.
(vi) Lot area requirements.

A3) Stream Buffer Delineation and Protection

The protected stream buffer shall consist of an area that is undisturbed
except for uses provided for in the table in Section 305(C-)(9) of this
ordinance. Stream buffers are required for all intermittent and perennial
streams as well as ponds, lakes and reservoirs (excluding wetlands and
agricultural ponds) with hydrologic connections to these streams as
approximately shown on either the most recent published version of the
soil survey map prepared by the Natural Resources Conservation Service
of the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) or the most recent
version of the 1:24,000 scale (7.5 minute) quadrangle topographic maps
prepared by the United States Geologic Survey (USGS). Pursuant to
Section 305(C)(1) above, perennial and intermittent streams shall be
subject to the stream buffer requirements of this Section if stream
evaluations made by the Storm Water Administrator determine that
intermittent or perennial streams are present based on the latest version of
the N.C. Division of Water Quality’s publication entitled Identification
Methods for the Origins of Intermittent and Perennial Streams. In
addition, non-agricultural ponds, lakes and reservoirs with a hydrologic
connection to such streams shall be subject to the stream buffer

34



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

“@

)

(6)

requirements. Such determinations can also be requested from a

landowner or other concerned party. Surface waters that appear on the

maps shall not be subject to this ordinance if an on-site evaluation by the

Storm Water Administrator shows that they fall into one of the following

categories:

(a) Ditches and manmade conveyances other than modified natural
streams.

(b) Manmade ponds and lakes that are not intersected by a buffered
stream segment and that are located outside natural drainage ways.

(c) Ephemeral (storm water) streams.

(d) Agricultural ponds.

Stream Buffer Widths

In the Goose Creek District, undisturbed stream buffers are required at the
following widths for all intermittent and perennial streams as well as the
ponds, lakes and reservoirs (excluding wetlands and agriculture ponds)
with hydrologic connections to such streams:

(a) 200-foot wide if located within the 100-Year Floodplain.

(b) 100-foot wide if located outside the 100-Year Floodplain.

The 100-Year Floodplain is the one percent Annual Chance Floodplain as
delineated by the North Carolina Floodplain Mapping Program in the N.C.
Division of Emergency Management.

Stream Buffer Location

The location of the stream buffer shall be as follows:

(a) For intermittent and perennial streams, the stream buffer shall
begin at the most landward limit of the top of bank or the rooted
herbaceous vegetation and extend landward on all sides of the
surface water, measured horizontally on a line perpendicular to the
surface water.

(b) For ponds, lakes and reservoirs located within a natural drainage
way, the stream buffer shall begin at the most landward limit of the
normal water level or the rooted herbaceous vegetation and extend
landward, measured horizontally on a line perpendicular to the
surface water.

Requirements for Categories of Uses and Mitigation

Uses designated as exempt, potentially allowable, and prohibited in the
table in Section 305(C)(9) of this ordinance shall have the following
requirements:
(a) Exempt
Uses designated as exempt are allowed within the stream buffer.
Exempt uses shall be designed, constructed and maintained to

35



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

)

(b)

©

(d)

minimize soil disturbance and to provide the maximum water
quality protection practicable. In addition, exempt uses shall meet
requirements listed in the table for the specific use.

Potentially Allowable

Uses designated as potentially allowable may proceed within the
stream buffer provided that there are no practical alternatives to the
requested use pursuant to Section 305(C)(7) of this ordinance.
Pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above, these uses require written
authorization from the Storm Water Administrator. Some of these
uses require mitigation, as indicated in the table provided in
Section 305(C)(9) of this ordinance.

Prohibited

Uses designated as prohibited or not included in the table provided
in Section 305(C)(9) of this ordinance may not proceed within the
stream buffer unless a variance is granted pursuant to Section
305(C)(10) of this ordinance. Site-specific mitigation may be
required as one condition of a variance approval.

Mitigation

Persons who wish to undertake uses designated as allowable with
mitigation shall obtain approval for a mitigation proposal pursuant
to Section 305(C)(11) of this ordinance.

Determination of No Practical Alternatives

Pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above, persons who wish to undertake uses
designated as potentially allowable shall submit a request for a “no
practical alternatives” determination to the Storm Water Administrator.
The applicant shall certify that the criteria identified in Subsection (a)
below are met. The Storm Water Administrator shall grant an
Authorization Certificate upon a “no practical alternatives” determination.
The procedure for making an Authorization Certificate shall be as follows:

(@

For any request for an Authorization Certificate, the Storm Water
Administrator shall review the entire project and make a finding of
fact as to whether the following requirements have been met in
support of a “no practical alternatives” determination:

@) The basic project purpose cannot be practically
accomplished in a manner that would better minimize
disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect
water quality.

(i1) The use cannot practically be reduced in size or density,
reconfigured or redesigned to better minimize disturbance,
preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect water quality.

(iii)  Plans for practices shall be used if necessary to minimize
disturbance, preserve aquatic life and habitat, and protect
water quality.

36



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(iv)  The Storm Water Administrator must consider the impacts
that may affect conditions required to sustain and recover
the federally endangered Carolina heelsplitter (Lasmigona
decorata).

(b) Requests for an Authorization Certificate shall be either approved
or denied by the Storm Water Administrator within 60 days of
receipt of a complete submission based on the criteria in
Subsection (a) above. Failure to issue an approval or denial within
60 days shall constitute that the applicant has demonstrated “no
practical alternatives.” The Storm Water Administrator may attach
conditions to the Authorization Certificate that support the
purpose, spirit and intent of the stream buffer protection program.
Complete submissions shall include the following:
>i) The name, address and phone number of the applicant:,

(ii)  The nature of the activity to be conducted by the applicant:,

(iii)  The location of the activity, including the jurisdiction;,

(iv) A map of sufficient detail to accurately delineate the
boundaries of the land to be utilized in carrying out the
activity, the location and dimensions of any disturbance in
stream buffers associated with the activity, and the extent
of stream buffers on the land:,

) An explanation of why this plan for the activity cannot be
practically accomplished, reduced or reconfigured to better
minimize disturbance to the stream buffer, preserve aquatic
life and habitat and protect water quality;, and

(vi)  Plans for any practices proposed to be used to control the
impacts associated with the activity.

(c) Any disputes over determinations regarding Authorization
Certificates shall be referred to the Director of the N.C. Division of
Water Quality for a decision. The Director’s decision is subject to
review as provided in Articles 3 and 4 of G.S. 150B.

8 Approval of Allowable Uses and Uses Allowable with Mitigation

Pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above, the Storm Water Administrator shall
review proposed uses within the stream buffer and issue approvals under
the following provisions if the uses meet the stream buffer protection
requirements:

(a) The Storm Water Administrator shall issue an Authorization
Certificate for uses if the proposed use meets the requirements,
including provisions for mitigation set forth in Section 305(C)(11)
of this ordinance.

(b) The N.C. Division of Water Quality may challenge a decision
made by the Storm Water Administrator for a period of 30 days
after the Authorization Certificate is issued. If the N.C. Division
of Water Quality does not challenge an Authorization Certificate

37



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................c.........

.Effective July 21, 2016

within 30 days of issuance, then the Storm Water Administrator’s
decision shall stand.

()] Stream Buffer Categories and Uses
Stream buffers along surface waters in the Goose Creek District shall be
maintained. Some uses within stream buffers are exempt and some uses
are potentially allowable. Any exempt or potentially allowed use shall
require storm water control as outlined in Section 305(A) of this ordinance
if the one-acre threshold is met. The following chart sets out the uses and
their designation under this ordinance as exempt, potentially allowable
requiring Storm Water Administrator approval (pursuant to Section
305(C)(1) above) or potentially allowable requiring both Storm Water
Administrator approval (pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above) and
mitigation; or prohibited as described in Section 305(C)(6) above. The
United States Environmental Protection Agency Endangered Species
Protection Program at www.epa.gov/espp and N.C. Pesticide Board
regulates pesticide application (see rules at 02 NCAC 09L .2201 through
.2203).
Potentially
allowable
..
approval
)-+er
Potentially Allowable
allowable with
Use Description-of-Uses Deemed | FeQUiFing &lltjlgdtlﬂ N
ExemptDeemed beth Lpon Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
appreval | —
and
£ Allowable
Upon
Authorization
(A) Airport facilities:
(i) Vegetation removal activities necessary to X
comply with Federal Aviation Administration
requirements (e.g., line of sight requirements
provided the disturbed areas are stabilized
and revegetated
(i) Airport facilities that impact equal to or less X
than +50-}inearfeet-oF-one-third of an acre
of streamriparian buffer X
(iii) Airport facilities that impact greater than +50 X
hinearfeet-or-one-third of an acre of
streamriparian buffer
(B) Archaeological activities X

38

Inserted Cells

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

(C) Bridges:
(1) Impact equal to or less than one-tenth of an
acre of riparian buffer
(i) Impact greater than one-tenth of an acre of
riparian buffer

<

(D) Dam maintenance activities:
(i) Dam maintenance activities that do not cause
additional riparian buffer disturbance beyond
the footprint of the existing dam
(ii) Dam maintenance activities that do cause
additional riparian buffer disturbance beyond
the footprint of the existing dam

[

(E) Drainage of a pond subject to Paragraph (c) of this
Rule provided that a new riparian buffer is
established by natural regeneration or planting
within 50 feet of any stream which naturally forms
or is constructed within the drained pond area.
Drained ponds shall be allowed to naturalize for a
minimum of six months from completion of the
draining activity before a stream determination is
conducted pursuant to Paragraph (d) of this Rule

[

(F) Fences:
(i) Fencing livestock out of surface waters
(i) Installation does not result in removal of trees
(iii) Installation results in removal of trees

< <

<

(G) Fertilizer application:

(i) One-time fertilizer application at agronomic
rates in the riparian buffer to establish
replanted vegetation. No runoff from this one-
time application in the riparian buffer is
allowed in the surface water

(ii) Ongoing fertilizer application

[

| Inserted Cells

(H) Forest harvesting - see Rule .0608 of this Section
ditches and storm-water
bt sb e X
bufters:

[

 Deleted Cells

- { Deleted cells

 Inserted Cells

| Inserted Cells

39

| Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Peotentisll:
srllovsrle
requiring
appreval

-er
Potentially |  Allowable
allowable with
Use Description-of-Uses iri Mitigation
ExemptDeemed Pequﬂimgl I Upon Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
approval -
and
*) Allowable
Upon
Authorization
— - itches,
I e
provided-that-they-are
S X
5 g , .
iﬂ g” on il
]I ] . ]. ] . é
. . ’ X
ot sbdemdie
B
provided-that-a-sterm
water-management
faeility-is-installed-to X
imize ] 5 :
. ] ]g
Huti ]
flow-before-the
B e T
through-thestream-buffer
i i B
. .g] .
I e S
sediment. nutrients
other-polution-and
attenuate low-before
Lischaraine ik bl
stream-buffer

40

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

*)Allowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

E - 4 bed
..
| . g] . e
diteh(l) Greenways, trails,
sidewalks or linear
pedestrian/bicycle transportation
systems:

(i) _In outer riparian buffer
(landward of 50 feet) provided
that no built upon area is
added within the riparian
buffer

(ii) In the inner riparian buffer
provided that no built upon
area is added within the
riparian buffer and the
installation does not result in
the removal of tree(s

(iii) When built upon area is added
to the riparian buffer, equal to
or less than 10 feet wide with
two-foot-wide shoulders. Shall
be located landward of 50 feet

unless there is no practical
alternative

+ (iv) When built upon area
is added to the riparian buffer,
greater than 10 feet wide with
two-foot-wide shoulders. Shall
be located landward of 50 feet

unless there is no practical
alternative

(J) Historic Preservation

(<

(K) New Landfills as defined by G.S. 130A-290

<

(L) Maintenance access on modified natural streams
or canals: a grassed travel way on one side of the
waterbody when less impacting alternatives are

[

41

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

not practical. The width and specifications of the
travel way shall be only that needed for equipment
access and operation. The travel way shall be
located to maximize stream shading

(M) Mining activities:

(i) Mining activities that are covered by the
Mining Act provided that new riparian buffers
that meet the requirements of Paragraph (h) of
this Rule and Rule .0605 of this Section are
established adjacent to any relocated channels

ii) Wastewater or mining dewatering wells with
approved NPDES permit

[><

<

(N) On-site sanitary sewage systems - new ones that
use ground absorption

<

(O) Pedestrian access trail and associated steps leading
to a surface water, dock, canoe or kayak access,
fishing pier, boat ramp or other water dependent
structure:

(1) Equal to or less than six feet wide that does
not result in the removal of any tree(s) within
the riparian buffer and does not result in the
addition of built upon area to the riparian
buffer
Equal to or less than six feet wide that results
in the removal of tree(s) or the addition of
built upon area to the riparian buffer
(iii) Greater than six feet wide

(i)

[

[

<

(9]

Playground equipment:

i) Playground equipment on single-family lots
provided that installation and use does not
result in removal of vegetation

(ii) Playground equipment on single-family lots
where installation or use results in the
removal of vegetation

(iii) Playground equipment installed on lands
other than single-family lots

[><

[><

<

| Inserted Cells

Dfa-'mage(Q) Ponds created or modified by

impounding streams subject to riparian buffers

0

 Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

pursuant to Paragraph (c) of a-pond-in-a-natural
drainage-waythis Rule and not used as

stormwater control measures (SCMs):

(i) New ponds provided that a new
streamriparian buffer that meets the diffuse
flow-requirements of Paragraph (h) of this
Rule and Rule .0605 of this Section 306-is
established adjacent to the arew
channelpond

X

R

\-g

Protection of existing structures and facilities
when this requires additional disturbance to the
riparian buffer

[><

(S) Public Safety - publicly owned spaces where it has
been determined by the head of the local law
enforcement agency with jurisdiction over that
area that the riparian buffers pose a risk to public
safety. The head of the local law enforcement
agency shall notify the local government with land
use jurisdiction over the publicly owned space and
the Division of Water Resources of any such
determination in writing

[><

(T

—

Removal of previous fill or debris provided that
Paragraph (h) of this Rule is complied with and
any vegetation removed is restored

<

(U) Restoration or enhancement (wetland, stream) as
defined in 33 CFR Part 332 available free of
charge on the internet at:
http://water.epa.gov/lawsregs/guidance/wetlands
mitigation_index.cfm
(i) Wetland or stream restoration that is part of a
compensatory mitigation bank, nutrient offset
bank, or the In Lieu Fee program

(ii) Wetland or stream restoration other than those
listed above

[

[><

43

| Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...............

vevo........Effective July 21, 2016

Potentially Allowable
allowable with
Use Description-6f-Uses Deemed | FEQUIFIRg Mlﬂng:on N
ExemptDeemed beth Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
e
XAllowable
Upon
Authorization
(V) Road, driveway or railroad - impacts other than X
perpendicular crossings of streams and other
surface waters subject to this Rule
Priveway-(W) Road, driveway or railroad -
perpendicular crossings of streams and other
surface waters subject to this erdinaneeRule:
(1) Impact equal to or less than one-tenth of an X
acre of riparian buffer
(i) Impact greater than one-tenth of an acre but
equal to or less than one-third of an acre of X
riparian buffer
(iii) Impact greater than one-third of an acre of
riparian buffer
2 (iv) Driveway crossings of-siigle
family-in a residential }otssubdivision that X X
disturbcumulatively impact equal to or less
than 25-Jinearfeetin-width-and-are "
perpendicular>-one-third of an acre of =
riparian buffer <
(V) Driveway crossings on-sigle = X

family-in a residential lots-that-disturb
1 )5 1 foet il !
are-perpendicular
I bdivisi | lativel
b e Ll L0
L foet il !
e
F-a-subdivision that cumulatively
eisturbsimpact greater than +50-Hnear
feet—n-widthone-third of an acre of
riparian buffer
2 (vi) Farm roads and forest roads that are

perpendiettar—exempt from permitting

44

Inserted Cells

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

45

Potentially
slleable
reqirmg
appreval
-er
Potentially Allowable | | Inserted Cells
allowable with
Use Description-6f-Uses requiring Mitigation
ExemptDeemed beth Upon Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
approval -
e
*)Allowable
Upon
Authorization
from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers per
Section 404(f) of the Federal Clean Water Act
(X) Road relocation of existing private access roads
associated with public road projects where
necessary for public safety:
(i) Less than or equal to 2,500 square feet of X
riparian buffer impact
(ii) Greater than 2,500 square feet of riparian X
buffer impact
(Y) Scientific studies and stream gauging X )
Eenees(Z) Slatted uncovered decks. including steps X X NS | Inserted Cells
and support posts, which are associated with a
dwelling. provided that disturbanee-is
mintmizedit meets the requirements of
Paragraph (h) of this Rule and Rule .0605 of this
Section and installation does not result in removal
of forest-vegetation
B e T e R o
ordinance—(AA) Stormwater Control Measure
(SCM) as defined in 15A NCAC 02H .1002: X
(i) _In the outer riparian buffer (landward of 50
feet) if Paragraph (h) of this Rule is complied
with X
(i) In the outer riparian buffer (landward of 50
feet) if Paragraph (h) of this Rule is not
complied with
BB) Streambank or shoreline stabilization X )
o hieation: . | Inserted Cells
0 . fortili Licati
srmrem e ek e b e s e
semeion X
Temporary roads, provided that the disturbed
area is restored to pre-construction topographic
and hydrologic conditions and replanted with
comparable vegetation within two months of when X



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...............

vevo........Effective July 21, 2016

Temporary sediment and erosion control
devices provided that the disturbed area is restored
to preconstruction topographic and hydrologic
conditions and replanted with comparable
vegetation within two months of when

46

Peotentially
ellesable
.
appreval
€O -ex
Potentially Allowable | | Inserted Cells
allowable with
Use Description-ef-Uses requiring Mitigation
ExemptDeemed both Upon | Prohibited
Allowable Authorizati
e Authorization
approval
e
*)Allowable
Upon
Authorization
construction is complete. Tree planting may occur
during the dormant season. At the end of five X
years, any restored wooded riparian buffer shall
comply with the restoration criteria in Rule X
.0295(i) of this Subchapter:
(i) Less than or equal to 2,500 square feet of
riparian buffer disturbance
(i) Greater than 2,500 square feet of riparian
buffer disturbance
* (i) Associated with culvert installation
or bridge construction or replacement
- — 5 X
e g B LD L J00 X
Mining-aetivities: .  Inserted Cells
| ,g . . )
stream-butters-thatmeet-the diffuse
. .
. ]l . |
S X
.. vities il
B X
st e e b
. .
ll Lished-adi ]
bbb L
e .. | . I il
sppEesed L s e DD X



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Potentially Allowable |
allowable with
ipti ey Mitigation
Use Description-6f-Uses Deemed | FEQUIFIRg Itj gi; o N
ExemptDeemed beth ~pon Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
e
XAllowable
Upon
Authorization
construction is complete. Tree planting may occur
during the dormant season. At the end of five X
years, any restored wooded riparian buffer shall
comply with the restoration criteria in Rule
.0295(i) of this Subchapter:
(i) _In the outer riparian buffer (landward of 50 %
feet) provided that ground cover is established *=
within the timeframes required by the
Sedimentation and Erosion Control Act,
vegetation in the inner riparian buffer is not
compromised, and that discharge is released
in accordance with Paragraph (h) of this Rule
(i1) In the inner and outer riparian buffer to
control impacts associated with uses
identified in this Table or uses that have
received an Authorization Certificate with
Exception provided that sediment and erosion
control for upland areas is addressed outside
the riparian buffer
- (iii) In-stream temporary erosion and
sediment control measures for work within a
stream channel that is authorized under
Sections 401 and 404 of the Federal Clean
Water Act
EE) Utility Lines - Streambank stabilization for the
protection of publicly owned utility lines (not
including new line installation):
(1) Less than 150 feet of streambank disturbance X
(ii) Greater than 150 feet of streambank X
disturbance
FF) Utility Lines - Sewer Lines - Sanitary Sewer
Overflows:
(i) Emergency sanitary sewer overflow response X

activities, provided that the disturbed area
within the riparian buffer outside of the
existing utility line maintenance corridor: is
the minimum necessary to respond to the
emergency overflow, is restored to pre-

47

| Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Potentially Allowable |
allowable with
Use Description-6f-Uses requiring Mitigation
ExemptDeemed beth Upon Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
e
XAllowable
Upon
Authorization
construction topographic and hydrologic
conditions, and is replanted with comparable
vegetation (e.g., grass with grass, hardwoods
with hardwoods) within two months of when
disturbance is complete
(ii) Emergency sanitary sewer overflow response X
activities that do not meet the listing above.
For any new proposed permanent impacts are
not a "Deemed Allowable Activity", an
application for an Authorization Certificate
shall be submitted to the Authority no later
than 30 calendar days of conclusion of the
emergency response activities
GG) Utility - Sewer Lines — Vegetation maintenance
activities that remove forest vegetation from
existing sewer utility right of ways (not including
new line installation) outside of the existing utility
line maintenance corridor:
(i) Impacts outside of the inner 50 feet nearest X
the stream
(ii) Impacts in the inner 50 feet nearest the X
stream: For lines that have not been
maintained, the vegetation can be mowed, cut
or otherwise maintained without disturbance
to the soil structure for a maintenance corridor
that is equal to or less than 30 feet wide
(iii) Impacts in the inner 50 feet nearest the stream
X

| Inserted Cells

other than those listed above
] ] dieula ossing 3
A o N il
stream

N . c the
e
. q SCHOSS S

48

\ Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

erossings-detatled-below(HH) Utility —
Sewer Lines - Replacement/ Rehabilitation of
existing sewer lines within, or adjacent to, an
existing right of way but outside of an existing
utility line maintenance corridor provided that
comparable vegetation (e.g., grass with grass,
hardwoods with hardwoods) is allowed to
regenerate in disturbed riparian buffers outside of
the permanent maintenance corridor and riparian
buffers outside of the permanent maintenance
corridor are not maintained:
(1) Permanent maintenance corridor equal to or
less than 30 feet wide provided there is no
grading and/or grubbing within 10 feet of the
top of bank when the sewer line is parallel to
the stream
Grading and/or grubbing within 10 feet of the
top of bank when the sewer line is parallel to
the stream and permanent maintenance
corridor equal to or less than 30 feet wide
= (ii1) Permanent maintenance corridor greater
than 30 feet wide. For impacts other than

(ii)

Peotentially Allowable |
allowable with
Use Description-of-Uses requiring Mitigation
ExemptDeemed both Upon Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
approval
and
X Allowable
Upon
Authorization
the-stream zonef bothgravity-and X
. .
foree . ;SG" £
. e el | I
. . . . xXE
Eift-Statie T Sl 25595955, X

tobometm e ool

B X*E X

B S Tt

. | tained for3
semmeetatle e nb sl e

49

| Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

perpendicular crossings, mitigation is only
required for impacts in the inner 50 feet
nearest the stream. For perpendicular
crossings that disturb equal to or less than 40
linear feet, no mitigation is required. For
perpendicular crossings that disturb greater
than 40 linear feet, mitigation is only required
for impacts in the inner 50 feet nearest the
stream

erossing-(11)

Utility - Sewer Lines — New Line
Construction/Installation Activities —
Perpendicular crossings of streams and other
surface waters subject to this erdinance-that-are
notecollection-systems™:
p Licul . I " L |
to-ordess than 40-Hnear feet ol stream
buffer-with-a-Rule or perpendicular entry into
the riparian buffer that does not cross a stream or
other surface water subject to this Rule provided
that vegetation is allowed to regenerate in
disturbed areas outside of the permanent

maintenance corridor-egtal-to-or-tess-than+10

p Lieul . hat disturl
o) Construction corridor of

less than or tess-thanequal to 40 linear feet
of stream-buffer-withwide and a

permanent maintenance corridor greater

50

| Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Potentially Allowable |
allowable with
Use Description-ef-Uses requiring Mitigation
ExemptDeemed both Upon | Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
approval -
e
*)Allowable
Upon
Authorization
- - ] -
greater-than-40-linear-feet-butthat is XE
equal to or less than +50-Hnrear30 feet wide
2—(ii) Construction corridor of Stream
buffer witha-greater than 40 linear feet
wide and less than or equal to 150 linear feet X
wide and a permanent maintenance corridor X
. P Lieul . | i !
X

oo than - bmens oo ba o s
equal to or less than +50-Hinearfeet-of
b i .

. oot imveidsl

30 feet wide

(iii) Construction corridor of greater
than 150 linear feet of stream-butfer
. ] Pefy Hecti :
R
hneswide and Hiftstations;-above):

. ] C tho fi .
installation-methodsa permanent
maintenance corridor that is equal to

. . ’ g ]
otherpollution-through the stream

3 | Jaex
miero-tunneling-methodor less than 30

feet wide

51

| Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

] - ] - :
nutrient-and-otherpolution-through
the-stream-bufter by-the most

s E e e s et di )
Permanent maintenance corridor that is
greater than 30 linear feet wide. For impacts
other than perpendicular crossings, mitigation
is only required for impacts in the inner 50
feet nearest the stream. For perpendicular
crossings that disturb equal to or less than 40
linear feet, no mitigation is required. For
perpendicular crossings that disturb greater
than 40 linear feet, mitigation is only required
for impacts in the inner 50 feet nearest the
stream

i -
thermemeandnb cedien

| Inserted Cells

: . ]5 .
b pe b o e Lo e
buflter

: . ] .

hinearfeet-of stream-buffer-(J1) Utility -

Sewer Lines — New Line Construction/ Installation

Activities — Impacts other than perpendicular
crossings provided that vegetation is allowed to
regenerate in disturbed areas outside of the
permanent maintenance corridor:

(i) Impacts outside of the inner 50 feet nearest
the stream

Less than 2,500 square feet of impacts in the

(ii)

inner 50 feet nearest the stream when impacts

are solely the result of tying into an existing
utility line and when grubbing or grading
within 10 feet immediately adjacent to the
surface water is avoided

[

52

\ Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Potentially Allowable
allowable with
Use Description-ef-Uses requiring Mitigation
ExemptDeemed Upon Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
approval
e
*)Allowable
Upon
Authorization
=~ (iii) Impacts to the inner 50 feet nearest
the stream other than noted above
— - - - X
B T
e b e e oL
e b e
e . l] f . . g )
+—Playeround-equipmentinstalied-enlands X
. - .
dey-ponds:
= New ponds provided that a stream X
bufter that meets-the diffuse ow
. Seeti .
established adjacentto-the pond X
+— New ponds-where astream-bulfer that
. .
Secti . . 1t | . X
to-the pond
—New-pondstoragrieuttural-uses
IProtection-of(KK) Utilities — Non-Sewer
Underground Lines. Vegetation maintenance
activities that remove forest vegetation from
existing straetaresfaeilities-andutility right
of ways (not including new line installation)
outside of the existing utility line maintenance X
corridor: X

53

Inserted Cells

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................c.........

.Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

(i) Impacts outside of the inner 50 feet nearest

the stream-banks-when-thisrequires
additional

(ii) Impacts in the inner 50 feet nearest the
stream: For lines that have not been
maintained, the vegetation can be mowed, cut
or otherwise maintained without disturbance
of thestream-buffer-orto the soil
structure for a maintenance corridor that is
equal to or less than 30 feet wide

(iii) Impacts in the inner 50 feet nearest the stream
channelother than those listed above

Rathoads her d - :
s et e e L
hicordi

Railread(LL)

Utilities — Non-Sewer Underground Lines.
Perpendicular crossings of streams and other

surface waters subject to this erdinanee:

IRatlroad-erossingsRule or perpendicular entry into

the riparian buffer that #npaet-equal-to-or-does

not cross a stream or other surface water subject to

this Rule provided that vegetation is allowed to

regenerate in disturbed areas outside of the

permanent maintenance corridor:

= (4 Construction corridor of less than
400r equal to 50 linear feet 6fstrean
bufferwide and a permanent maintenance
corridor that is equal to or less than 30 feet
wide

. B . hati (i)
Construction corridor of greater than 40 linear
feet but-equal-to-or-wide and less than or

equal to 150 linear feet of stream

<

54

Inserted Cells

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

bufferwide and a permanent maintenance
corridor that is equal to or less than 30 feet
wide
Construction corridor of greater than 150
linear feet ofstream-bufferwide and a
permanent maintenance corridor that is equal
to or less than 30 feet wide

2 (iv) Permanent maintenance corridor that
is greater than 30 linear feet wide (mitigation
is required only for impacts within the inner
50 feet nearest the stream)

| Inserted Cells

linearfeet-of stream-buffer(MM) Utilities —
Non-Sewer Underground Lines. Impacts other
than perpendicular crossings provided that
vegetation is allowed to regenerate in disturbed
areas outside of the permanent maintenance
corridor:

[

55

| Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

(1) Impacts outside of the inner 50 feet nearest
the stream

(ii) Impacts in the inner 50 feet nearest the
stream to less than 2,500 square feet when
impacts are a result of tying to an existing
utility line and when grubbing or grading
within 10 feet immediately adjacent to the
surface water is avoided

. (i) Impacts to the inner 50 feet nearest
the stream other than noted above

Temporary roads:

HFemporary-roads(NN) Utilities — Non-Sewer Aerial
Lines. Perpendicular crossings of streams and
other surface waters subject to this Rule or
perpendicular entry into the riparian buffer that
eisturbdoes not cross a stream or other surface
water subject to this Rule:

= (4 Disturb equal to or less than 6+

equal-to2;500-square150 linear feet wide

of riparian buffer provided that a minimum

56

Inserted Cells

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

*)Allowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

zone of 10 feet wide immediately adjacent to
the waterbody is managed such that only
vegetation is-resteredthat poses a hazard or
has the potential to grow tall enough to
interfere with the line is removed, that no land
grubbing or grading is conducted in the inner
50 feet nearest the stream, and that that poles
or aerial infrastructure are not installed within

sixmonths10 feet of initial disturbancea
waterbody
»Tempeoraryroads-that-disturb(ii) Disturb
greater than 2:500-square150 linear feet

provided-that-vegetationisrestored
within-six-monthswide of initial

e

57

| Inserted Cells




Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................c.........

.Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

R T e
T

CrOSSHES-
- Titvhre(00
Utilities — Non-Sewer Aerial Lines - Impacts other
than perpendicular crossings of streams and other

surface waters subject to this ordinanee:
b PerpendienlarerossingsRule or perpendicular

entry into the riparian buffer that distarb-less

than-or-equaldoes not cross a stream or other

surface water qubjcct 1o kel st
streambuffer “this Rule: Rulc
et then b ) Impacts
outside of the inner 50 feet ©fnearest the
streambuffé?3‘4

. (i) Impacts in the inner 50 feet nearest
the stream provided that a minimum zone of
10 feet wide immediately adjacent to the
waterbody is managed such that only
vegetation that poses a hazard or has the
potential to grow tall enough to interfere with
the line is removed, that no land grubbing or
grading is conducted in the inner 50 feet
nearest the stream, and that that poles or aerial
infrastructure are not installed within 10 feet
of a waterbody

(PP) Vegetation management:

- @ Emergency fire control measures
provided that topography is restored

ii) Placement of mulch ring around restoration

plantings for a period of five years from the
date of planting

58

Inserted Cells

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

Use Description-ef-Uses

ExemptDeemed

Allowable

XAllowable

Upon
Authorization

Allowable
with
Mitigation
Upon
Authorization

Prohibited

& (iii) Planting non-invasive vegetation to
enhance the streamriparian buffer
* (v Pruning forest vegetation provided
that the health and function of the forest
vegetation is not compromised
2 (V) Removal of individual trees,
branches or limbs which are in danger of
causing damage to dwellings, existing utility
lines, other structures or human life, or are
imminently endangering stability of the
streambank provided that the stumps are left
or ground in place without causing additional
land disturbance
(vi) Removal of individual trees that are dead
diseased or damaged
- vii) Removal of poison ivy, oak or
sumac. If removal is significant, then the
riparian buffer shall be replanted with non-
invasive species
(viii) Removal of understory nuisance vegetation as
defined in: Smith, Cherri L. 1998 Exotic
Environmentand Natural Resourecs.
Division-of Parks-and Reercation. 2008
Invasive Plants of North Carolina. Dept. of
Transportation. Raleigh, NC-Guideline
#30 (available at
http://portal.ncdenr.org/c/document). If
removal is significant then the riparian buffer
shall be replanted with non-invasive species
- (ix) Removal of woody vegetation in the
riparian buffer provided that Paragraph (h) of
this Rule is complied with

[

[

[

QQ) Vehicle access roads and boat ramps (excluding
parking areas) leading to surface water, docks,

fishing piers, and other water dependent activities:

59

Inserted Cells



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance................

............Effective July 21, 2016

60

Potentially
slleable
reqirmg
appreval
-er
Potentially Allowable | | Inserted Cells
allowable with
Use Description-6f-Uses requiring Mitigation
ExemptDeemed beth Upon Prohibited
Allowable Authorization
approval -
e
mitigation
*)Allowable
Upon
Authorization
(i) _Single vehicular access road and boat ramp to
the surface water but not crossing the surface X
water that are restricted to the minimum width
practicable not to exceed 15 feet wide
(i1) Vehicular access roads and boat ramps to the
surface water but not crossing the surface X
water that are restricted to the minimum width
practicable and exceed 15 feet wide
(RR) Water dependent structures (except for boat X . \ Inserted Cells
ramps) as defined in F5A-NEAC-O2BRule
.0202 of this Subchapter
(SS) Water wells X
Wetland-restoration(TT) Wildlife passage structures X X



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(10) Variances and Appeals for Activities Within Stream Buffers

Persons who wish to undertake uses designated as prohibited within the
protected stream buffer area may pursue a variance. The variance request
procedure shall be as follows:

(a) Pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above, for any variance request the
Storm Water Administrator shall make a finding of fact as to
whether the following requirements have been met. The applicant
must submit information to the Storm Water Administrator to
demonstrate that:

i) There are practical difficulties or unnecessary hardships
that prevent compliance with the strict letter of the stream
buffer protection requirements. Practical difficulties or
unnecessary hardships shall be evaluated in accordance
with the following:

@ If the applicant complies with the provisions of the
stream buffer requirements, he/she can secure no
reasonable return from, nor make reasonable use of,
his/her property. Merely proving that the variance
would permit a greater profit from the property is
not adequate justification for a variance. Moreover,
the Storm Water Administrator shall consider
whether the variance is the minimum possible
deviation from the terms of the stream buffer
requirements that will make reasonable use of the
property possible.

61



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(b)

(II)  The hardship results from application of the stream
buffer requirements to the property rather than from
other factors such as deed restrictions or other
hardship.

(II)  The hardship is due to the physical nature of the
applicant's property and is unique to the applicant's
property, such as its size, shape, or topography,
such that compliance with the provisions of this
ordinance would not allow reasonable use of the
property.

(IV)  The applicant did not cause the hardship by
knowingly or unknowingly violating the stream
buffer requirements.

(V)  The applicant did not purchase the property after
February 1, 2009 and then request a variance.

ii) The variance is in harmony with the general purpose and
intent of the State’s stream buffer protection requirements
and preserves its spirit; and

iii) In granting the variance, the public safety and welfare have
been assured, water quality has been protected, and
substantial justice has been done.

A variance request pertains to any activity that is proposed to

impact any portion of the stream buffer. Pursuant to Section

305(C)(1) above, if the Storm Water Administrator has determined

that a variance request meets the requirements in Section

305(C)(10)(a) above, then a preliminary finding shall be prepared
within 30 days of the receipt of the request and submitted to

SWAC for approval. Once that approval is obtained, then the

Storm Water Administrator shall submit the variance to the

Director of Division of Water Quality (DWQ) to present to the

N.C. Environmental Management Commission. Preliminary

findings on variance requests shall be reviewed by the N.C.

Environmental Management Commission within 90 days after

receipt by the DWQ. Requests for appeals of determinations that

the requirements of Section 305(C)(10)(a) have not been met shall
be made to the Office of Administrative Hearings for
determinations made by the Division of Water Quality or the

Storm Water Advisory Committee as described in Section 205 of

this ordinance for determinations made by the Storm Water

Administrator. The purpose of the N.C. Environmental

Management Commission’s review is to determine if it agrees that

the requirements in Section 305(C)(10)(a) above have been met.

Requests for appeals of decisions made by the N.C. Environmental

Management Commission shall be made to the Office of

Administrative Hearings. The following actions shall be taken

62



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

depending on the N.C. Environmental Management Commission’s

decision on the variance request:

(1) Upon the N.C. Environmental Management Commission’s
approval, the Storm Water Administrator shall issue a final
decision granting the variance.

(i1) Upon the N.C. Environmental Management Commission’s
approval with conditions or stipulations, the Storm Water
Administrator shall issue a final decision, which includes
these conditions or stipulations.

(iii)  Upon the N.C. Environmental Management Commission’s
denial, the Storm Water Administrator shall issue a final
decision denying the variance.

(c) Pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above, requests for appeals of
determinations made by the Storm Water Administrator regarding
the stream buffer requirements contained in Section 305(C) of this
ordinance shall be made to the Storm Water Advisory Committee
as described in Section 205 of this ordinance.

(11) Mitigation Requirements for Stream Buffer Impacts

(a) Purpose
The purpose of this Section is to set forth the mitigation

requirements that apply to the Goose Creek District existing stream

buffer protection program, as described in Section 305(C) of this

ordinance in accordance with 15A NCAC 02B .0295.

() Applicability

This Section applies to persons who wish to impact a stream buffer

in the Goose Creek District when one of the following applies:

i) A person has received an Authorization Certificate
pursuant to Section 305(C)(9) above for a proposed use that
is designated as potentially allowable requiring both Storm
Water Administrator approval and mitigation pursuant to
Section 305(C)(1) above.

(ii) A person has received a variance pursuant to Section
305(C)(10) and is required to perform mitigation as a
condition of a variance approval.

(c) The Area of Mitigation

Pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above, the required area of

mitigation shall be determined by the Storm Water Administrator

according to the following:

i) The impacts in square feet to the stream buffer shall be
determined by the Storm Water Administrator by adding
the following:

@ The area of the footprint of the use causing the
impact to the stream buffer.

63



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(II)  The area of the boundary of any clearing and
grading activities within the stream buffer necessary
to accommodate the use.

(II)  The area of any ongoing maintenance corridors
within the stream buffer associated with the use.

The Storm Water Administrator shall deduct from this total

the area of any wetlands that are subject to and compliant

with riparian wetland mitigation requirements under 15A

NCAC 02H .0506 and are located within the proposed

riparian buffer impact area.

(ii))  The required area of mitigation shall be determined by
applying the following multipliers to the impacts
determined in Subsection (c)(i) above to each zone of the
stream buffer:

@ Impacts to the stream buffer shall be multiplied by
three.

(II)  Impacts to wetlands within the stream buffer that
are subject to mitigation under 15A NCAC 02H
.0506 shall comply with the mitigation ratios in 15A
NCAC 02H .0506.

(d) The Location of Mitigation

The mitigation effort should be within the Goose Creek District, as

close to the location of the impact as feasible. Mitigation may be

done within other watersheds with the same federally listed
threatened or endangered aquatic species as long as the impacts are
in the same river basin as the mitigation site.

(e) Issuance of Mitigation Determination

Pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above, the Storm Water

Administrator shall issue a mitigation determination that specifies

the required area and location of mitigation pursuant to

Subsections (c) and (d) above.

) Options for Meeting the Mitigation Determination

The mitigation determination made pursuant to Subsection (e)

above may be met through one of the following options:

(1) Payment of a compensatory mitigation fee pursuant to
Subsection (g) below.

(i1) Donation of real property or of an interest in real property
pursuant to Subsection (h) below.

(iii)  Restoration or enhancement of a non-forested stream
buffer. This shall be accomplished by the applicant after
submittal and approval of a restoration plan pursuant to
Subsection (i) below.

(iv)  Alternative buffer mitigation pursuant to Subsection (j) of
this rule; or other buffer mitigation as approved by the
Storm Water Administrator as a condition of a variance
approval pursuant to Section 305(C)(10).

64



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(g) Payment to the Stream Buffer Restoration Fund

Persons who choose to satisfy their mitigation determination by

paying a compensatory mitigation fee shall meet the following

requirements:

@) The amount of payment into the Fund shall be determined
by multiplying the acres or square feet of mitigation
determination made pursuant Subsection (e) above by the
rate established pursuant to 15A NCAC 02R. 0601.

(ii) Pursuant to Section 305(C)(1) above, the required fee shall
be submitted to the Storm Water Administrator prior to any
activity that results in the removal or degradation of the
protected stream buffer for which a “no practical
alternatives” determination has been made.

(iii)  The payment of a compensatory mitigation fee may be
fully or partially satisfied by donation of real property
interests pursuant to Subsection (h) below.

(h) Donation of Property

Persons who choose to satisfy their mitigation determination by

donating real property or an interest in real property to fully or

partially offset an approved payment into the Stream Buffer

Restoration Fund pursuant to Subsection (g) above shall do so in

accordance with 15A NCAC 02B .0295 and 15A NCAC 02R

.0403.

@) Stream Buffer Restoration or Enhancement

Persons who choose to meet their mitigation requirement through

stream buffer restoration or enhancement shall do so in accordance

with 15A NCAC 02B .0295. requirements pursuant in accordance
with 15A NCACO2R .0403Section (n) Riparian Buffer Mitigation

Restoration Site or Enhancement Site.

39) Alternative Buffer Mitigation Options

Persons who wish to meet mitigation requirements by way of

alternative buffer mitigation options shall do so pursuant to 15A

NCAC 02B .0295.

(306) DIFFUSE FLOW REQUIREMENT

Direct discharges of runoff to streams are not allowed. Techniques for providing diffuse

flow are specified in the Charlotte-Mecklenburg Land Development Standards Manual or

currently adopted Town’s standards’ manual. Diffuse flow of runoff shall be maintained

in the stream buffer by dispersing concentrated flow and reestablishing vegetation, as

follows:

(1) Concentrated runoff from new ditches or manmade conveyances shall be
converted to diffuse flow before the runoff enters the stream buffer; and

2) Periodic corrective action to restore diffuse flow shall be taken if necessary to
impede the formation of erosion gullies.

65



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(307) PONDS, LAKES AND RESERVOIRS

(308)

(309)

(310)

Ponds, lakes and reservoirs with a hydrologic connection to a perennial or intermittent
stream shall comply with the buffer requirements applicable to the stream.

WETLANDS

Sewer lines and associated structures must be a minimum of 50 feet from jurisdictional
wetlands associated with the floodplain.

STREAM BUFFER DELINEATION

The following stream buffer delineations are required:

(M

@
€)
4)
®)

Streams and stream buffer boundaries including all buffer zones must be clearly
delineated on all construction plans, including grading and clearing plans, erosion,
drainage and sediment control plans and site plans.

Outside buffer boundaries must be clearly marked on-site prior to any land
disturbing activities.

The outside boundary of the stream buffer must be permanently marked at
highway stream crossings.

Streams and stream buffer boundaries including the delineation of each buffer
zone must be specified on all surveys and record plats.

Stream buffer boundaries including the delineation of each buffer zone as well as
all buffer requirements must be specified on all surveys and record plats, on
individual deeds and in property association documents for lands held in common.

STANDARDS FOR STORM WATER CONTROL MEASURES

A)

(B)

Evaluation According to Contents of Design Manual

All storm water control measures and storm water treatment practices (also
referred to as Best Management Practices, or BMPs) required under this
ordinance shall be evaluated by the Storm Water Administrator according to the
policies, criteria, and information, including technical specifications, standards
and the specific design criteria for each storm water best management practice
contained in the Design Manual. The Storm Water Administrator shall determine
whether these measures will be adequate to meet the requirements of this
ordinance.

Determination of Adequacy; Presumptions and Alternatives

Storm water treatment practices that are designed, constructed, and maintained in
accordance with the criteria and specifications in the Design Manual will be
presumed to meet the minimum water quality and quantity performance standards
of this ordinance. Whenever an applicant proposes to utilize a practice or
practices not designed and constructed in accordance with the criteria and

66



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

311)

specifications in the Design Manual, the applicant shall have the burden of
demonstrating that the practice(s) will satisfy the minimum water quality and
quantity performance standards of this ordinance before it can be approved for
use. The Storm Water Administrator may require the applicant to provide such
documentation, calculations, and examples as necessary for the Storm Water
Administrator to determine whether such an affirmative showing is made.

(C)  Submittal of Digital Records

Upon submittal of as-built plans, the location of storm drainage pipes, inlets and
outlets as well as the location of all BMPs as well as Undisturbed Open Space
must be delivered to the Storm Water Administrator in the digital format specified
in the Administrative Manual.

DEED RECORDATION AND INDICATIONS ON PLAT

The approval of the Storm Water Management Permit shall require an enforceable
restriction on property usage that runs with the land, such as plat, recorded deed
restrictions or protective covenants, to ensure that future development and redevelopment
maintains the site consistent with the approved project plans. The location of all
designated Undisturbed Open Space for a site shall be recorded at the Register of Deeds
Office as “Undisturbed Open Space.” Streams and stream buffer boundaries including
the delineation of each buffer zone must be specified on all surveys and record plats. The
applicable operations and maintenance agreement pertaining to every structural BMP
shall be referenced on the final plat and shall be recorded with the Mecklenburg County
Register of Deeds Office upon final plat approval. If no subdivision plat is recorded for
the site, then the operations and maintenance agreement shall be recorded with the
Mecklenburg County Register of Deeds Office so as to appear in the chain of title of all
subsequent purchasers under generally accepted searching principles. A copy of the
recorded maintenance agreement shall be provided to the Storm Water Administrator
within fourteen (14) days following receipt of the recorded document. A maintenance
easement shall be recorded for every structural BMP to allow sufficient access for
adequate maintenance. The specific recordation and deed restriction requirements as well
as notes to be displayed on final plats and deeds shall be contained in the Administrative
Manual.

67



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

6.8.4

UNDISTURBED OPEN SPACE

(401)

(402)

(403)

PURPOSE

Undisturbed Open Space provides for a reduction in the negative impacts from storm
water runoff through non-structural means. The combination of the structural BMPs
described in Section 3 with the non-structural Undisturbed Open Space provisions
described in this Section allow the objectives of this ordinance to be fulfilled.

GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Undisturbed Open Space is required for new development as described below unless
mitigated (undisturbed open space is not required for redevelopment). The percentage of
Undisturbed Open Space required depends on a project’s built-upon area as described
below. Undisturbed Open Space requirements can be met in stream or lake buffers,
designated common areas or on individual lots for residential development (e.g.,
backyards, borders, etc.). Undisturbed Open Space cannot be designated within rights of
way, utility easements, etc. where re-disturbance could occur. Grass fields can also be
used to meet Undisturbed Open Space requirements; however, the fields must be
replanted in accordance with the tree planting provisions described in Section 405 (C)
below. Undisturbed Open Space is preferred where it will provide maximum water
quality benefit (i.e-., around gullies and existing drainage areas, adjacent to streams and
wetlands, around structural BMPs, etc.).

UNDISTURBED OPEN SPACE CRITERIA
Undisturbed Open Space requirements apply to projects as described below.
(A) Less Than 20% Built-Upon Area

Undisturbed Open Space is not required for development that has less than 20%
built-upon area.

(B)  Greater Than or Equal to 20% and Less Than 50% Built-Upon Area
A project with greater than or equal to 20% and less than 50% built-upon area
shall include as Undisturbed Open Space within the boundaries of the project a
minimum of 15% of the project area.

(C)  Greater Than or Equal to 50% Built-Upon Area

A project with greater than or equal to 50% built-upon area shall include as Open
Space within the boundaries of the project a minimum of 10% of the project area.

68



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(404) UNDISTURBED OPEN SPACE DESIGNATION

(405)

The Undisturbed Open Space location shall be recorded at the Register of Deeds Office
as “Undisturbed Open Space” and future disturbance is prohibited except for greenway
trails with unlimited public access, new Charlotte-Mecklenburg Utility lines and channel
work/maintenance activities by Charlotte-Mecklenburg Storm Water Services. Other
utility work may be allowed in the Undisturbed Open Space area provided it will not
result in loss of Undisturbed Open Space as approved by the Town of Mint Hill.

UNDISTURBED OPEN SPACE MITIGATION

A)

(B)

©

Purpose

The purpose of this mitigation is to reduce the cost of complying with the
Undisturbed Open Space requirement while ensuring the reduction of pollution
loads and achievement of ordinance objectives.

General Description

Approved disturbance to the Undisturbed Open Space area described in Section
403 above must be off-set by an allowable form of mitigation, including on-site
and off-site mitigation as well as through payment-in-lieu.

Undisturbed Open Space Mitigation Criteria

@

On-Site Mitigation

On-site mitigation shall allow the disturbance of designated Undisturbed
Open Space area on a project with the fulfillment of the following criteria
on the project site:

(@

(b)

©

50% increase in total Undisturbed Open Space area designation
above the requirements specified in Section 403 above, except
when the Undisturbed Open Space area qualifies as a “grass field”
in which case the size of the required Undisturbed Open Space
area remains unchanged. The portion of the Undisturbed Open
Space area that is a grass field, whether or not disturbed, must be
replanted with trees as specified in Subsection (c) below.
Establishment of a minimum of six (6) inches of top soil to the
disturbed Open Space area following the completion of
construction activities. This material may be obtained from on-site
when available.
Planting of a minimum of 36 trees per acre of Undisturbed Open
Space area as follows:
i) Trees shall have a minimum caliper of 1.5 inches.
(ii)  Trees shall be of a quality set forth by the American
Standard for Nursery Stock and will be selected from a list

69



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

of acceptable native species for planting in Undisturbed
Open Spaces established in the Administrative Manual.

(iii)  Planted trees shall contain a mix of at least three (3)
different species in roughly equal proportions and be “large
mature shade tree species” as defined in the Administrative
Manual.

(iv)  Trees shall be planted in accordance with specifications
provided in the Administrative Manual.

) Trees shall be warranted for a minimum of two (2) years
following planting and any dead or diseased trees must be
replaced.

(d) The area around and between trees must be stabilized using an
approved vegetative ground cover and mulch.
(e) The slope of any graded or disturbed area that is dedicated for

Undisturbed Open Space cannot exceed 3 to 1.

) The flow of water across the Undisturbed Open Space area must be
controlled to prevent soil erosion or mulch disturbance.

2) Off-Site Mitigation

On a case—-by--case basis and at the sole discretion of the Storm Water
Administrator, the Town of Mint Hill may allow Undisturbed Open Space
disturbance and off-site mitigation through the acceptance for ownership
or conservation easement properties for the protection of Undisturbed
Open Space, provided the result will be an increased protection of water
quality over what would be attained through preservation of Undisturbed
Open Space or on site mitigation (see Administrative Manual).

A3 Payment-In-Lieu of Undisturbed Open Space Dedication

Payment-in-lieu of Undisturbed Open Space dedication is only allowed for
industrial and commercial developments and multi-family projects that are
in excess of 50% built upon area. Payment-in-lieu shall only be allowed
to the extent an approved disturbance cannot be offset by on-site
mitigation as determined by the Storm Water Administrator. The
following criteria shall be fulfilled for the payment-in-lieu option:

(a) A fee shall be paid to the Town of Mint Hill based on the
following formula: 1.25 x (appraised value of subject property
including intended use without improvements). The appraised
value of the subject property shall be determined by a licensed,
independent real estate appraiser retained by the developer or
owner. The Town of Mint Hill may accept the appraised value or
at its discretion obtain its own appraisal. In the event the parties
cannot agree on the appraised value, the two appraised values shall
be averaged together to determine the final appraised value to be
used in the formula above.

70



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(b) Payment shall be accepted by the Town of Mint Hill prior to land
disturbing activities.

(c) The Town of Mint Hill shall use the payment-in-lieu to purchase
Undisturbed Open Space in the same delineated watershed as the
property to be disturbed within a maximum of two (2) years of the
end of the calendar year from the receipt of the payment. The
three (3) delineated watershed districts used for mitigation
purposes are described in Section 302 above. As an option, the
Town of Mint Hill may elect to use up to 10 percent of the fee to
purchase and plant trees within the Town of Mint Hill.

(D)  Approval Criteria for Undisturbed Open Space Mitigation

M

@

Application for Undisturbed Open Space Mitigation

The Storm Water Administrator shall receive, review, approve, disapprove
or approve with conditions an “Application for Undisturbed Open Space
Mitigation.” The Storm Water Administrator shall design this application
to include all pertinent information, including at a minimum a “mitigation
plan” describing the desired mitigation option as discussed in previous
sections and an effective demonstration that all reasonable efforts have
been undertaken to fulfill the Undisturbed Open Space requirement on the
particular site. An application for on-site mitigation shall show the
location of the restored Undisturbed Open Space on the property and the
location, type and size of all trees and ground cover to be planted as well
as contain a warranty statement for the trees. An off-site mitigation
application shall show the location and description including acreage, etc.
of the property to be used for mitigation and contain a legally valid
instrument demonstrating that the applicant has legal title to the property
for transfer to the Town of Mint Hill. A payment-in-lieu application shall
at a minimum contain the location and description of the site to be
mitigated and an approved appraisal by a licensed, independent real estate
appraiser

Pre-Approved Undisturbed Open Space Mitigation

The following is pre-approved for on-site mitigation and does not require
the submittal of an application to the Storm Water Administrator;
however, these mitigation areas shall be described on the Storm Water
Management Permit Application.
(a) Residential, Commercial and Multifamily Uses
25% of the required Undisturbed Open Space area as described in
Section 403 above is pre-approved for on-site mitigation provided
the size of mitigation area is 150% of the disturbed area. Other
forms of mitigation as described above must receive approval from
the Storm Water Administrator.

71



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(E)

(b) Industrial Uses
100% of the required Undisturbed Open Space area as described in
Section 403 above is pre-approved for on-site mitigation with no
increase in total required Undisturbed Open Space area. Other
forms of mitigation as described above must receive approval from
the Storm Water Administrator.

Undisturbed Open Space Designation

All designated Undisturbed Open Space areas included as part of an approved
mitigation must be recorded at the Register of Deeds Office as “Undisturbed
Open Space” and any future disturbance of this area is strictly prohibited except
for greenway trails with unlimited public access, Charlotte-Mecklenburg Utility
lines and channel work/maintenance activities by Charlotte-Mecklenburg Storm
Water Services. Other utility work may be allowed in the Undisturbed Open
Space area provided it will not result in loss of Undisturbed Open Space as
approved by the Town of Mint Hill.

72



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

6.8.5

MAINTENANCE

(501) DEDICATION OF BMPS, FACILITIES & IMPROVEMENTS

A)

(B)

©

Single Family Residential BMPs Accepted for Maintenance

The Town of Mint Hill shall accept maintenance responsibility (as specified in the

Administrative Manual) of structural BMPs that are installed pursuant to this

ordinance following a warranty period of two (2) years from the date of as-built

certification described in Section 203(C), provided the BMP:

€)) Only serves a single family detached residential development or
townhomes all of which have public street frontage:,

?2) Is satisfactorily maintained during the two-year warranty period by the
owner or designee:,

3) Meets all the requirements of this ordinance and the Design Manual; and

4) Includes adequate and perpetual access and sufficient area, by easement or
otherwise, for inspection, maintenance, repair or reconstruction.

The Storm Water Administrator must receive an application for transfer of
maintenance responsibilities for the structural BMP along with the Storm Water
Management Permit Application. The Storm Water Administrator will develop
and distribute this application as a component of the Administrative Manual (see
Section 202(D)(4)).

Maintenance and Operation of BMPs

The owner of a structural BMP installed pursuant to this ordinance and not
covered under Section 501(A) above shall maintain and operate the BMP so as to
preserve and continue its function in controlling storm water quality and quantity
at the degree or amount of function for which the structural BMP was designed.

Damage or Removal of Trees

The following provisions apply to trees contained in permitted Undisturbed Open
Space areas or in BMPs that are damaged or removed:

(1) For trees damaged or removed due to natural disasters, the owner shall be
required to replace the trees in accordance with the undisturbed open
space mitigation criteria described in Section 405(C)(1)(c) of this
ordinance within a timeframe specified by the Storm Water Administrator.

) For trees damaged or removed due to reasons other than (1) above, the
owner shall be required to replace the trees in accordance with the open
space mitigation criteria described in Section 405(C)(1)(c) of this
ordinance within a timeframe specified by the Storm Water Administrator

73



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

D)

with the following exception, the trees shall be replaced at twice the
specified density. In addition, the owner may be subject to fines as
described in Section 6, Violations and Enforcement.

Annual Maintenance Inspection and Report

The person responsible for maintenance of any BMP installed pursuant to this
ordinance and not covered under Section 501(A) above shall submit to the Storm
Water Administrator an inspection report from a qualified registered North
Carolina professional engineer or landscape architect performing services only in
their area of competence. All inspection reports shall be on forms supplied by the
Storm Water Administrator that are contained in the Administrative Manual. An
original inspection report shall be provided to the Storm Water Administrator
beginning one year from the date of as-built certification and each year thereafter
on or before the anniversary date of the as-built certification.

(502) OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

A)

General

At the time that as-built plans are provided to the Storm Water Administrator as
described in Section 203(C) and prior to final approval of a project for
compliance with this ordinance, but in all cases prior to placing the BMPs in
service, the applicant or owner of the site must execute an operation and
maintenance agreement that shall be binding on all current and subsequent owners
of the site, portions of the site, and lots or parcels served by the structural BMP.
Failure to execute an operation and maintenance agreement within the time frame
specified by the Storm Water Administrator may result in assessment of penalties
as specified in Section 6, Violations and Enforcement. Until the transference of
all property, sites, or lots served by the structural BMP, the original owner or
applicant shall have primary responsibility for carrying out the provisions of the
maintenance agreement. At the discretion of the Storm Water Administrator,
certificates of occupancy may be withheld pending receipt of an operation and
maintenance agreement. The operation and maintenance agreement shall require
the owner or owners to maintain, repair and, if necessary, reconstruct the
structural BMP, and shall state the terms, conditions, and schedule of maintenance
for the structural BMP. In addition, it shall grant to the Town of Mint Hill a right
of entry in the event that the Storm Water Administrator has reason to believe it
has become necessary to inspect, monitor, maintain, repair, or reconstruct the
structural BMP; however, in no case shall the right of entry, of itself, confer an
obligation on the Town of Mint Hill to assume responsibility for the structural
BMP.

Standard operation and maintenance agreements for BMPs shall be developed by

the Storm Water Administrator and made available in the Administrative Manual.
The operation and maintenance agreement must be approved by the Storm Water

74



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(503)

(504)

(505)

(506)

Administrator prior to plan approval, and it shall be referenced on the final plat as
described in Section 311.

(B)  Special Requirement for Homeowners’ and Other Associations

For all structural BMPs required pursuant to this ordinance not covered under
Section 501(A) above, and that are to be or are owned and maintained by a
homeowners’ association, property owners’ association, or similar entity, the
required operation and maintenance agreement shall include the provisions
described in the Administrative Manual.

INSPECTION PROGRAM

Inspections and inspection programs by the Town of Mint Hill may be conducted or
established on any reasonable basis, including but not limited to routine inspections;
random inspections; inspections based upon complaints or other notice of possible
violations; and joint inspections with other agencies inspecting under environmental or
safety laws. Inspections may include, but are not limited to, reviewing maintenance and
repair records; sampling discharges, surface water, groundwater, and material or water in
BMPs; and evaluating the condition of BMPs.

If the owner or occupant of any property refuses to permit such inspection, the Storm
Water Administrator shall proceed to obtain an administrative search warrant pursuant to
North Carolina General Statute 15-27.2 or its successor. No person shall obstruct,
hamper or interfere with the Storm Water Administrator while carrying out his or her
official duties.

PERFORMANCE SECURITY FOR INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE

The Town of Mint Hill may require the submittal of a performance security or bond with
surety, cash escrow, letter of credit or other acceptable legal arrangement prior to
issuance of a permit in accordance with the provisions contained in the Administrative
Manual.

RECORDS OF INSTALLATION AND MAINTENANCE ACTIVITIES

The owner of each structural BMP shall keep records of inspections, maintenance, and
repairs for at least five years from the date of creation of the record and shall submit the
same upon reasonable request to the Storm Water Administrator.

MAINTENANCE EASEMENT
Every structural BMP installed pursuant to this ordinance shall be made accessible for
adequate inspection, maintenance, reconstruction and repair by a maintenance easement.

The easement shall be recorded as described in Section 311 and its terms shall specify
who may make use of the easement and for what purposes.

75



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

6.8.6

VIOLATIONS AND ENFORCEMENT

(601) GENERAL

A)

(B)

©

D)

Authority to Enforce

The provisions of this ordinance shall be enforced by the Storm Water
Administrator, his or her designee, or any authorized agent of the Town of Mint
Hill. Whenever this Section refers to the Storm Water Administrator, it includes
his or her designee as well as any authorized agent of the Town of Mint Hill.

Violation Unlawful

Any failure to comply with an applicable requirement, prohibition, standard, or
limitation imposed by this ordinance, or the terms or conditions of any permit or
other development or redevelopment approval or authorization granted pursuant
to this ordinance, is unlawful and shall constitute a violation of this ordinance.

Each Day a Separate Offense

Each day that a violation continues shall constitute a separate and distinct
violation or offense.

Responsible Persons/Entities

Any person who erects, constructs, reconstructs, alters (whether actively or
passively), or fails to erect, construct, reconstruct, alter, repair or maintain any
structure, BMP, practice, or condition in violation of this ordinance, as well as
any person who participates in, assists, directs, creates, causes, or maintains a
condition that results in or constitutes a violation of this ordinance, or fails to take
appropriate action, so that a violation of this ordinance results or persists; or an
owner, any tenant or occupant, or any other person, who has control over, or
responsibility for, the use or development of the property on which the violation
occurs shall be subject to the remedies, penalties, and/or enforcement actions in
accordance with this Section. For the purposes of this article, responsible
person(s) shall include but not be limited to:

(6)) Person Maintaining Condition Resulting In or Constituting Violation
Any person who participates in, assists, directs, creates, causes, or
maintains a condition that constitutes a violation of this ordinance, or fails
to take appropriate action, so that a violation of this ordinance results or

persists.

?2) Responsibility for Land or Use of Land

76



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

The owner of the land on which the violation occurs, any tenant or
occupant of the property, any person who is responsible for storm water
controls or practices pursuant to a private agreement or public document,
or any person, who has control over, or responsibility for, the use,
development or redevelopment of the property.

(602) INSPECTIONS AND INVESTIGATIONS

A)

(B)

Authority to Inspect

The Storm Water Administrator shall have the authority, upon presentation of
proper credentials, to enter and inspect any land, building, structure, or premises
to ensure compliance with this ordinance, or rules or orders adopted or issued
pursuant to this ordinance, and to determine whether the activity is being
conducted in accordance with this ordinance and the approved storm water
management plan, Design Manual and Administrative Manual and whether the
measures required in the plan are effective. No person shall willfully resist, delay,
or obstruct the Storm Water Administrator while the Storm Water Administrator
is inspecting or attempting to inspect an activity under this ordinance.

Notice of Violation and Order to Correct

When the Storm Water Administrator finds that any building, structure, or land is
in violation of this ordinance, the Storm Water Administrator shall notify in
writing the responsible person/entity. The notification shall indicate the nature of
the violation, contain the address or other description of the site upon which the
violation occurred or is occurring, order the necessary action to abate the
violation, and give a deadline for correcting the violation. The notice shall, if
required, specify a date by which the responsible person/entity must comply with
this ordinance, and advise that the responsible person/entity is subject to remedies
and/or penalties or that failure to correct the violation within the time specified
will subject the responsible person/entity to remedies and/or penalties as
described in Section 603 of this ordinance. In determining the measures required
and the time for achieving compliance, the Storm Water Administrator shall take
into consideration the technology and quantity of work required; and shall set
reasonable and attainable time limits. The Storm Water Administrator may
deliver the notice of violation and correction order personally, by certified or
registered mail, return receipt requested, or by any means authorized for the
service of documents by Rule 4 of the North Carolina Rules of Civil Procedure.

If a violation is not corrected within a reasonable period of time, as provided in
the notification, the Storm Water Administrator may take appropriate action, as
provided in Section 603, Remedies and Penalties, to correct and abate the
violation and to ensure compliance with this ordinance.

77



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

©

D)

(E)

Extension of Time

A responsible person/entity who receives a notice of violation and correction
order, or the owner of the land on which the violation occurs, may submit to the
Storm Water Administrator a written request for an extension of time for
correction of the violation. On determining that the request includes enough
information to show that the violation cannot be corrected within the specified
time limit for reasons beyond the control of the responsible person/entity
requesting the extension, the Storm Water Administrator may extend the time
limit as is reasonably necessary to allow timely correction of the violation, up to,
but not exceeding 60 days. The Storm Water Administrator may grant 30-day
extensions in addition to the foregoing extension if the violation cannot be
corrected within the permitted time due to circumstances beyond the control of
the responsible person/entity violating this ordinance. The Storm Water
Administrator may grant an extension only by written notice of extension. The
notice of extension shall state the date prior to which correction must be made,
after which the violator will be subject to the penalties described in the notice of
violation and correction order.

Penalties Assessed Concurrent with Notice of Violation

Penalties may be assessed concurrently with a notice of violation for any of the
following in which case the notice of violation shall also contain a statement of
the civil penalties to be assessed, the time of their accrual, and the time within
which they must be paid or be subject to collection as a debt:

1) Failure to submit a storm water management plan.

2 Performing activities without an approved storm water management plan.

3) Obstructing, hampering or interfering with an authorized representative
who is in the process of carrying out official duties.

“ A repeated violation for which a notice was previously given on the same
project and to the same responsible person/entity responsible for the
violation.

5) Willful violation of this ordinance.

©) Failure to install or maintain best management practices per the approved
plan.

Authority to Investigate

The Storm Water Administrator shall have the authority to conduct such
investigation as it may reasonably deem necessary to carry out its duties as

78



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(¥)

(&)

prescribed in this ordinance, and for this purpose to enter at reasonable times upon
any property, public or private, for the purpose of investigating and inspecting.

No Person shall refuse entry or access to the Storm Water Administrator who
requests entry for purpose of inspection or investigation, and who presents
appropriate credentials, nor shall any Person obstruct, hamper, or interfere with
the Storm Water Administrator while in the process of carrying out official duties.
The Storm Water Administrator shall also have the power to require written
statements, or the filing of reports under oath as part of an investigation.

Enforcement After Time to Correct

After the time has expired to correct a violation, including any extension(s) if
authorized by the Storm Water Administrator, the Storm Water Administrator
shall determine if the violation is corrected. If the violation is not corrected, the
Storm Water Administrator may act to impose one or more of the remedies and
penalties authorized by Section 603.

Emergency Enforcement

If delay in correcting a violation would seriously threaten the effective
enforcement of this ordinance or pose an immediate danger to the public health,
safety, or welfare, then the Storm Water Administrator may order the immediate
cessation of a violation. Any Person so ordered shall cease any violation
immediately. The Storm Water Administrator may seek immediate enforcement,
without prior written notice, through any remedy or penalty specified in Section
603.

(603) REMEDIES AND PENALTIES

The remedies and penalties provided for violations of this ordinance, whether civil or
criminal, shall be cumulative and in addition to any other remedy provided by law, and
may be exercised in any order.

A)

Remedies
Q) ‘Withholding of Certificate of Occupancy

The Storm Water Administrator or other authorized agent may refuse to
issue a certificate of occupancy for the building or other improvements
constructed or being constructed on the site and served by the storm water
practices in question until the applicant or other responsible person has
taken the remedial measures set forth in the notice of violation or has
otherwise cured the violations described therein.

?2) Disapproval of Subsequent Permits and Development Approvals

79



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

(B)

©))

@

)

As long as a violation of this ordinance continues and remains
uncorrected, the Storm Water Administrator or other authorized agent may
withhold, and the Town of Mint Hill may disapprove, any request for
permit or development approval or authorization provided for by this
ordinance or the zoning, subdivision, and/or building regulations, as
appropriate for the land on which the violation occurs.

Injunction, Abatements, etc.

The Storm Water Administrator, with the written authorization of the
Town Manager may institute an action in a court of competent jurisdiction
for a mandatory or prohibitory injunction and order of abatement to
correct a violation of this ordinance. Any person violating this ordinance
shall be subject to the full range of equitable remedies provided in the
General Statutes or at common law.

Correction as Public Health Nuisance, Costs as Lien, etc.

If the violation is deemed dangerous or prejudicial to the public health or
public safety as provided in North Carolina General Statute 153A-140, the
Storm Water Administrator, with the written authorization of the Town
Manager, may cause the violation to be corrected and the costs to be
assessed as a lien against the property.

Restoration of Areas Affected by Failure to Comply

By issuance of an order of restoration, the Storm Water Administrator may
require a Person who engaged in a land development activity and failed to
comply with this ordinance to restore the waters and land affected by such
failure so as to minimize the detrimental effects of the resulting pollution.
This authority is in addition to any other civil penalty or injunctive relief
authorized under this ordinance.

Civil Penalties

M

Violations of Ordinance

A violation of any of the provisions of this ordinance or rules or other
orders adopted or issued pursuant to this ordinance may subject the
violator to a civil penalty. A civil penalty may be assessed from the date
the violation occurs. No penalty shall be assessed until the person alleged
to be in violation has been notified of the violation except as provided in
Section 602(D) of this ordinance in which case the penalty is assessed
concurrently with a notice of violation. Refusal to accept the notice or
failure to notify the Storm Water Administrator of a change of address

80



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

@

3

“@

shall not relieve the violator’s obligation to comply with this ordinance or
to pay such a penalty.

Amount of Penalty

The maximum civil penalty for each violation of this ordinance is
$5,000.00. Each day of continuing violation shall constitute a separate
violation. In determining the amount of the civil penalty, the Storm Water
Administrator shall consider any relevant mitigating and aggravating
factors including, but not limited to, the effect, if any, of the violation; the
degree and extent of harm caused by the violation; the cost of rectifying
the damage; whether the violator saved money through noncompliance;
whether the violator took reasonable measures to comply with this
ordinance; whether the violation was committed willfully; whether the
violator reported the violation to the Storm Water Administrator; and the
prior record of the violator in complying or failing to comply with this
ordinance or any other post-construction ordinance or law. The Storm
Water Administrator is authorized to vary the amount of the per diem
penalty based on criteria specified in the Administrative Manual and based
on relevant mitigating factors. Civil penalties collected pursuant to this
ordinance shall be credited to the Town of Mint Hill’s general fund as
non-tax revenue.

Notice of Assessment of Civil Penalty

The Storm Water Administrator shall determine the amount of the civil
penalty and shall notify the violator of the amount of the penalty and the
reason for assessing the penalty. This notice of assessment of civil penalty
shall be served by any means authorized under North Carolina General
Statute 1A-1, Rule 4 and shall direct the violator to either pay the
assessment or file an appeal within 30 days of receipt of the notice as
specified in Section 603(B)(5) below.

Failure to Pay Civil Penalty Assessment

If a violator does not pay a civil penalty assessed by the Storm Water
Administrator within 30 Days after it is due; or does not request an appeal
as provided in Section 603(B)(5), the Storm Water Administrator shall
request the initiation of a civil action to recover the amount of the
assessment. The civil action shall be brought in Mecklenburg County
Superior Court or in any other court of competent jurisdiction. A civil
action must be filed within three (3) years of the date the assessment was
due. An assessment that is appealed is due at the conclusion of the
administrative and judicial review of the assessment.

81



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

Q) Appeal of Remedy or Penalty

The issuance of an order of restoration and/or notice of assessment of a
civil penalty by the Storm Water Administrator shall entitle the
responsible party or entity to an appeal before the Storm Water Advisory
Committee (SWAC) if such Person submits written demand for an appeal
hearing to the Clerk of SWAC within 30 days of the receipt of an order of
restoration and/or notice of assessment of a civil penalty. The demand for
an appeal shall be accompanied by a filing fee as established by SWAC.
The appeal of an order of restoration and/or notice of assessment of a civil
penalty shall be conducted as described in Section 205 of this ordinance.

(C) Criminal Penalties

Violation of this ordinance may be enforced as a misdemeanor subject to the
maximum fine permissible under North Carolina law.

82



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

6.8.7 DEFINITIONS

When used in this ordinance, the following words and terms shall have the meaning set forth in
this Section, unless other provisions of this ordinance specifically indicate otherwise.

1.

Administrative Manual

A manual developed by the Storm Water Administrator and distributed to the public to
provide information for the effective administration of this ordinance, including but not
limited to application requirements, submission schedule, fee schedule, maintenance
agreements, criteria for mitigation approval, criteria for recordation of documents, inspection
report forms, requirements for submittal of bonds, a copy of this ordinance, and where to
obtain the Design Manual.

Best Management Practices (BMPs)
A structural management facility used singularly or in combination for storm water quality
and quantity treatment to achieve water quality protection goals.

Buffer
See “Stream Buffer” definition below.

Built-Upon Area (BUA)

That portion of a development project that is covered by impervious or partially impervious
surface including, but not limited to, buildings; pavement and gravel areas such as roads,
parking lots, and paths; and recreation facilities such as tennis courts. “Built-upon area” does
not include a wooden slatted deck or the water area of a swimming pool.

Carolina heelsplitter

A rare species of freshwater mussel found in the Goose Creek Watershed that is listed as
federally endangered by the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service under the provisions of the
Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. 1531-1544.

Commercial Development
——Any development that is not residential development as defined herein.

Design Manual

The storm water design manual shall be approved for use in the Town of Mint Hill by the
North Carolina Department of Environment and Natural Resources and shall be at least as
stringent as the storm water design manual approved for use in Phase II jurisdictions by the
Department for the proper implementation of the requirements of the federal Phase II storm
water program. All references herein to the Design Manual are to the latest published edition
or revision.

Development

New development created by the addition of built upon area to land void of built upon
area as

of the effective date of this ordinance.

83



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

10.

11

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

Disturbance
Any use of the land by any person or entity which results in a change in the natural cover or
topography of the land.

Drainage Area
That area of land that drains to a common point on a project site.

. Floodplain

——The low, periodically- flooded lands adjacent to streams. For land use planning purposes,
the regulatory floodplain is usually viewed as all lands that would be inundated by the
Regulatory Flood.

Goose Creek District

The watershed area located within the corporate limits of or within the extraterritorial
jurisdiction of Mint Hill that drains to Goose Creek, Stevens Creek, Duck Creek and all
tributaries to such creeks.

Grass Field

Land on which grasses and other herbaceous plants dominate and trees over six feet in height
are sparse or so widely scattered that less than five percent (5%) of the land area is covered
by a tree canopy.

Industrial Uses
Land used for industrial purposes only. Commercial (or other non-industrial) businesses
operating on industrially- zoned property shall not be considered an industrial use.

Larger common plan of development or sale

Any contiguous area where multiple separate and distinct construction or land disturbing
activities will occur under one plan. A plan is any announcement or piece of documentation
(including but not limited to public notice or hearing, drawing, permit application, zoning
request, or site design) or physical demarcation (including but not limited to boundary signs,
lot stakes, or surveyor markings) indicating that construction activities may occur on a
specific plot.

Low Impact Development (LID)
The integration of site ecology and environmental goals and requirements into all phases of
urban planning and design from the individual residential lot level to the entire watershed.

Mitigation
Actions taken either on-site or off-site as allowed by this ordinance to offset the impacts of a
certain action.

Multifamily

A group of two or more attached, duplex, triplex, quadruplex, or multi-family buildings, or a
single building of more than 12 units constructed on the same lot or parcel of land under

84



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

single ownership; and planned and developed with a unified design of buildings and
coordinated common open space and service areas in accordance with the requirements of
Chapter 9 (of the Zoning Ordinance) for the zoning district in which it is located.

Non-Point Source (NPS) Pollution
Forms of pollution caused by sediment, nutrients, organic and toxic substances originating
from land use activities and carried to lakes and streams by surface runoff.

Owner

The legal or beneficial owner of land, including but not limited to a fee owner, mortgagee or
vendee in possession, receiver, executor, trustee, or long-term or commercial lessee, or any
other person or entity holding proprietary rights in the property or having legal power of
management and control of the property. “Owner” shall include long-term commercial
tenants; management entities, such as those charged with or engaged in the management of
properties for profit; and every person or entity having joint ownership of the property. A
secured lender not in possession of the property does not constitute an owner, unless the
secured lender is included within the meaning of “owner” under another description in this
definition, such as a management entity.

Person(s)

Any individual, partnership, firm, association, joint venture, public or private corporation,
trust, estate, commission, board, public or private institution, utility, cooperative, interstate
body, or other legal entity.

Redevelopment
Rebuilding activities on land containing built-upon area as of the effective date of this
ordinance.

Residential Development
A development containing dwelling units with open yards on at least two sides where land is
sold with each dwelling unit.

Stream Buffer

A natural or vegetated area adjacent to a stream, lake or other surface water body through
which storm water runoff flows in a diffuse manner so that the runoff does not become
channelized, and which provides for infiltration of the runoff and filtering of pollutants.

Stream Buffer Widths
Viewed aerially, the stream buffer width is measured horizontally on a line perpendicular to
the surface water, landward from the top of the bank on each side of the stream.

Stream Buffer Zones
Areas of the buffer with varying widths, uses and vegetative targets.

Storm Water Administrator

The Mecklenburg County Water Quality Program Manager as designated by the Town of
Mint Hill to administer and enforce this ordinance.

85



Mint Hill Post-Construction Storm Water Ordinance...........................Effective July 21, 2016

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

33.

34.

35.

Storm Water Advisory Committee (SWAC)

The Charlotte-Mecklenburg Storm Water Advisory Committee as established by joint
resolutions of the Charlotte City Council, Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners and
the Towns of Cornelius, Davidson, Huntersville, Matthews, Mint Hill and Pineville, together
with any amendments thereto.

Storm Water Management Permit
A permit required for all development and redevelopment unless exempt pursuant to this
ordinance, which demonstrates compliance with this ordinance.

S.W.LM.

An acronym for the Surface Water Improvement and Management initiative by the
Mecklenburg County Board of Commissioners for the purpose of restoring the quality and
usability of Mecklenburg County’s surface water resources. The S.W.L.M. initiative resulted
in the adoption of county wide buffers on streams that are termed S.W.I.M. Buffers.

Top of Bank
The landward edge of the stream channel during high water or bankfull conditions at the
point where the water begins to overflow onto the floodplain.

Topsoil
Natural, fertile soil capable of sustaining vigorous plant growth that is of uniform
composition throughout with an admixture of subsoil, has an acidity range of pH 5.5 - 7.0.

Total Suspended Solids (TSS)

Total suspended matter in water which includes particles collected on a filter with a pore size
of 2 microns as measured by Standard Method 2540-D, which is commonly expressed as a
concentration in terms of milligrams per liter (mg/1) or parts per million (ppm).

Townhomes
——Attached dwellings developed side by side where land is sold with each unit.

Undisturbed Open Space

Land that consists of natural areas containing trees and other natural shrubs consisting of
either undisturbed areas or disturbed areas that have been replanted in accordance with the
criteria established in this ordinance.

86



	PB 9.19.2022 Agenda
	PB 8.15 Minutes
	#ZC22-4 Staff Memo +

